
 

 

 
 

MEETING 
 

BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

TUESDAY 31ST JULY, 2012 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, NW4 4BG 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF BUSINESS MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chairman: Councillor Hugh Rayner (Chairman), 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Brian Salinger (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillors 
 

Maureen Braun 
Jack Cohen 
Brian Gordon 
 

Kath McGuirk 
Alison Moore 
Rowan Turner 
 

Barry Rawlings 
Andrew Strongolou 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Geoffery Johnson 
John Marshall 
 

Susette Palmer 
Lord Palmer 
 

Alan Schneiderman 
Daniel Seal 
 

 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Aysen Giritli – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Services contact: John Murphy  020 8359 2369  john.murphy@barnet.gov.uk  

 
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039 
 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE DIRECTORATE 
 



 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

a) Personal and Prejudicial Interests 
b) Whipping Arrangements ( in accordance with Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rule 17) 

 

4.   Public Question Time (if any)  
 

 

5.   Members' Items  
 

(submitted in accordance with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure 
Rule 9) (if any) 

 

 Call-in  
 

 

 

6.   Any matters Referred by Members of the Committee relating to 
key decisions made by:  
 

Cabinet 17th July 2012 
Cabinet Resources Committee  17th July 2012 ;or 
Any action taken by Cabinet Member(s) and /or Directors/Chief 
Officers under delegated powers (Executive Functions) 

1 - 2 

 Councillor Calls for Action  
 

 

 

7.   Councillor Calls for Action  
 

(Submitted in accordance  with Overview and Scrutiny Procedure  
Rule 22) (if any) 

 

 Business of the Committee  
 

 

 

8.   Friern Barnet Library Petition  
 

3 - 10 

9.   Task and Finish Groups / Overview and Scrutiny Panels - 
Recommendation Tracking  
 

11 - 52 

10.   Cabinet Forward Plan  
 

53 - 56 

11.   Forward Work Programme  57 - 66 



 
    

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone John Murphy  
020 8359 2369  john.murphy@barnet.gov.uk.  People with hearing difficulties who have a text 
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee Rooms 
also have induction loops. 

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by Committee 
staff or by uniformed custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Cabinet Resources Committee – 17 July 2012 

Urgent Item of Business 

Report  Decision of the Cabinet Member for Resources and 
Performance – Sale of the freehold interest in the former 
Hendon Football Club Ground and adjoining land 
Claremont Road, Hendon 

Called in by Councillor Jack Cohen 

Decision, Reason 
and Objective  

Decision 1.1:-   

That the Cabinet Resources Committee takes into account 
the information contained in the public and the exempt 
reports to give the authority to complete the sale of the 
Council’s freehold interest in this site to Montclare Limited 
on the terms authorised by the Director for Commercial 
Services in consultation as set out below. 

a) For a consideration of £2.8 million 

b) Overage payment as set out in the exempt report 

c) The provision of £4.1 million worth of Affordable 
Housing in the borough  

d) Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 
contributions 

e) Nomination rights on the Affordable Homes as valued in 
the exempt report 

 
Reasons for call-in:- 

1) To ask questions about the status of Montclare Ltd and 
whether this company has actually made an offer 

2) To seek information whether the three relevant 
Companies that are Hendon Football Club Ltd, 
Montclare Developments Ltd and Montclare LTD are 
insolvent 

3) To ask why the Authority is willing to sell to an under 
bidder and to ask whether this is lawful 

4) To ask for a detailed response to allegations that 
Hendon Football Club is in default on its Bank Loan and 
as a result does not control the destiny of its lease. 

5) To ask whether Barnet should fight the Judicial Review 
with the potential for huge costs to the Council Taxpayer 
and in particular to ask the Cabinet Member to tell me  if 
he has had advice form officers and what advice he has 
had of the merits of the case and whether he believes 

AGENDA ITEM 6

1



fighting the case is a good use of Council Tax payers 
money. 

 
Objective:-  
 

That if satisfactory answers are not given the report is 
referred back for the Cabinet Resources Committee and 
officers to actively pursue the offer to buy made by London 
Jewish Girls High. 

 
 

Delegated Powers Report 1727 (Environment, Planning and Regeneration 
Fees and Charges for 2012/13) 

Report  Decision of the Leader of the Council 

Called in by Councillor Kath McGuirk 

Decision, Reason 
and Objective  

Decision 10.1:-   

To approve the introduction of the new up to four hours 
Visitor Voucher; the introduction of the reduced rate parking 
vouchers for business purchase; the reduced tariffs to be 
applied in the car parks detailed in this report; the 
introduction of credit card payment machines. All measures 
are to be introduced as soon as possible complying with all 
necessary statutory requirements. 
 
Reasons for call-in:- 

To refer the decision back to the Leader of the Council for 
consideration of additional recommendations 
 
Objective:-  
 
To add the following variations in parking charges to the 
decision and an additional recommendation 1.2 “That there 
is no introduction of CCTV parking enforcement.” 
 
Additional variations in parking charges: 
 

1. Introduce a 30 minute free parking period pilot in town 
centres  

2. Reverse last year’s parking charge and parking permit 
increases  

3. Re-introduce parking meters in our town centres that 
take credit, debit, smart cards and cash  

4. Bring scratch card and any half day visitors permits in 
line with last year’s prices  

 

2



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 

Scrutiny Committee 

Date 31 July 2012 

Subject Friern Barnet Library Petition 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report provides Members with information 
relating to a petition signed by 2,523 residents 
submitted to the Council in relation to Friern Barnet 
Library.   

 

 
Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards Affected Coppetts  

Function of Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Enclosures Appendix A – Petition Summary 

Contact for Further 
Information: 

Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Manager, 
020 8359 2014, andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 8

3



1. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider the petition received by the Council in 

relation to the Friern Barnet Library and make appropriate comments 
and/or recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Customer Access 
and Partnerships and officers in respect of the issues raised. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 6 September 2010, Strategic Library Review 
 
2.2 Special Committee (Constitution Review), 13 October 2010, Local Democracy, 

Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 – Requirement for a 
Petition Scheme  

 
2.3 Council, 2 November 2010, Report of the Special Committee (Constitution 

Review) – 13 October 2010 
 
2.4 Cabinet, 29 March 2011, Strategic Library Review 
 
2.5 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 11 July 2012, 

Hampstead Garden Suburb Library and Friern Barnet Library Petitions  
 
2.6 Cabinet, 26 July 2011, Strategic Library Review 
 
2.7 Cabinet, 20 February 2012, Community Library Process 
 
2.8 Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 28 February 2012, 

Call-in – Community Library Process 
 
2.9 Cabinet, 4 April 2012, Reference from Business Management Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee – Community Library Process 
 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 

must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012-13 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Failure to deal with petitions received from members of the public in a timely 

way and in accordance with the provisions of the Council’s Constitution carries 
a reputational risk for the authority 

 
 

4



5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 

to  have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality 
and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender 
reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion or belief and sexual 
orientation. 

5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 
relating to matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the 
Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 
 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 

Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 The Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

requires local authorities to publicise and comply with a scheme for handling 
petitions and also provide a facility for electronic petitions on their websites. 

 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees are set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).   
 
8.3 Council Constitution, Section 4, Public Participation Procedure Rules, 

paragraph 5.8 provides that “Petitions of over 2,000 signatures will be 
considered at the Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee, 
where an officer will be called to give account.  The Lead Petitioner will have 
the right to address the Committee for five minutes.”  

 
 
9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 In September 2010, Cabinet agreed that a Strategic Library Review should 

commence.  The objectives of the review were to identify and meet local 
needs, identify options to modernise the service, provide a sustainable 
foundation for coming years, and to provide better services for less money. 
The aspiration for the review was to identify options to improve service 
provision, meet local needs and reduce cost. 

5



 
9.2 In March 2011, the Strategic Library Review was presented to Cabinet, who 

agreed the following: 

• Consultation commence on the proposed strategy and financial plan for a 
ten week period, with a final report outlining recommendations to be 
submitted to Cabinet for consideration thereafter. 

• That the extensive consultation and review activity that underpins the 
proposed strategy and financial plan be noted. 

• That the Equality Impact Assessment related to the proposed library 
strategy and financial plan be noted. 

• That development of a high-level implementation plan incorporating all key 
changes, aligned with the outcome of consultation activities be approved. 

• That the proposed strategy and financial plan would require additional 
capital expenditure outlined in this report be noted. 

• That discussions commence with the Arts Depot Trust regarding the 
potential co-location and development of a new Landmark Library with arts, 
cultural, and children’s specialism within the Arts Depot site. 

• That the initiation of negotiations with a neighbouring borough to develop a 
shared services approach, with recommendations to be reported to 
Cabinet be approved. 

 
9.3 On 11 July 2011, the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee considered petitions that had been received in relation to 
Hampstead Garden Suburb and Friern Barnet Libraries and made the 
following recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Customer Access and 
Partnerships and officers: 

(i) Officers be requested to provide further information on financial 
methodology used to assess overheads for each library and provide 
assurance that that the same financial methodology had been 
consistently applied across the entire library estate.  

(ii) Officers be requested to validate expected savings.  

(iii) the Cabinet Member for Customer Access and Partnerships be 
requested to examine proposals received by voluntary groups wishing 
to manage Hampstead Garden Suburb and Friern Barnet Libraries.  

 
9.4 On 26 July 2011, the Cabinet considered the outcome of a ten week 

consultation process and resolved as follows:-   

 That Cabinet: 

(i) Notes the extensive consultation and review activity that underpins the 
proposed strategy and financial plan, and the findings of the second 
phase of consultation. 

(ii) Has considered the Equality Impact Assessment related to the 
proposed library strategy and financial plan. 

6



(iii) Notes that the proposed strategy and financial plan would require 
capital expenditure outlined in the report, to report via Cabinet 
Resources Committee. 

(iv) Endorses continued negotiations with the Arts Depot Trust regarding 
the co-location and development of a new Landmark Library with arts, 
cultural, and children’s specialism within the Arts Depot site. 

(v) Endorses the programme of work outlined in the strategy, seeking 
opportunities to work with other local authorities to reduce costs. 

(vi) Proceeds to implement the strategy as set out in the report subject to 
the consideration of the feasibility of any community initiatives that 
come forward from residents on or before 31 October 2011. 

 
9.5 On 20 February 2012, the Cabinet received a report which provided an update 

on the process for inviting and assessing proposals from the community to 
operate community libraries in the Hampstead Garden Suburb and Friern 
Barnet areas and resolved as follows:-   

 That Cabinet: 

(i) Note the progress to date. 

(ii) Reaffirms its decision to transfer services from Friern Barnet and North 
Finchley Libraries to a new Landmark Library based at the Arts Depot 

(iii) Request that the council enter into formal negotiations with Hampstead 
Gardens Suburb Residents Association to agree a mutually agreeable 
arrangement for a community library in the existing building. 

 
9.6 On 29 February 2012, the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee considered a call-in on the Community Library Process and 
resolved as follows: 

 

(i) The decision of Cabinet to reaffirm the decision to transfer services 
from Friern Barnet and North Finchley Libraries to a new Landmark 
Library based at the Arts Depot be referred back to the Cabinet for 
reconsideration to request that the Friern Barnet Library will not be 
closed before the proposed new library services are transferred to the 
Arts Depot.  

(ii) A representative from the Committee attend the Cabinet 
 
9.7 On 4 April 2012, the Cabinet considered the reference back from the Business 

Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee (as set out at 9.6 above) and 
resolved as follows: 

(i) Taking into account the reference back by the Business Management 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet reaffirm the decision to 
transfer services from Friern Barnet and North Finchley Libraries into a 
new Landmark Library based at the Artsdepot, with the existing library 
service at Friern Barnet ceasing operation on 5 April 2012. 

 
9.8 The Committee are requested to consider the petition received by the Council 

in relation to re-opening Friern Barnet Library (in accordance with the 
constitutional provisions outlined at paragraph 8.3 above) and make 
appropriate comments/recommendations to the Cabinet and officers in respect 
of the issues raised.  The Cabinet Member for Customer Access & 

7



Partnerships and Assistant Director Customer Services & Libraries have been 
invited to give account to the Committee. 

 
9.6 The Chairman has agreed that the following format will be followed at the 

meeting: 

• Lead Petitioner has five minutes to present the petition to the Committee; 

• Ward Members have the opportunity to address the Committee; 

• Committee Members have the opportunity to ask questions of the Lead 
Petitioner and Ward Members; 

• Cabinet Member and relevant officers (Assistant Director Customer 
Services and Libraries and Head of Libraries) respond to the issues raised 
by the Lead Petitioner, Ward Members and Committee Members; 

• Committee Members to ask any further questions of the Cabinet Member 
and relevant officers; and 

• Committee to agree any comments/recommendations to be made to 
Cabinet Member for Customer Access & Partnerships and Assistant 
Director Customer Services & Libraries. 

 
9.6 Total signatures are taken from a combination of a paper petition (1,954 

signatures) and e-petition (569 signatures) is 2,523 (as of 17 July 2012).  The 
text submitted with the 2,523 signature petition is attached at Appendix A.   

 
 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance (Officer’s initials) JN/MC 

Cleared by Legal  (Officer’s initials) PD 

 
 

8



 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Business Management Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 31
st
 July 2012 

Subject Task and Finish Groups / Scrutiny 
Panels – Recommendation Tracking 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report provides the Committee with an update on 
the implementation of recommendations made by 
Overview & Scrutiny Task & Finish Group accepted by 
Cabinet. 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix A – Task & Finish Group Recommendations 

For decision by Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Contact for further information:  

Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager, Corporate Governance Directorate  

020 8359 2014, andrew.charlwood@barnet.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA ITEM 9

11



  

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1   That the Committee consider and comment on the progress made in 

implementing Task & Finish Group/ Scrutiny Panel recommendations 
accepted by Cabinet, as set out in Appendix A. 

 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 Cabinet, 3 February 2010, School Places Planning Task and Finish 

Group  
 
2.2 Cabinet, 22 February 2010, Advice Provision in the Borough Task and Finish 

Group 
 
2.3 Cabinet, 12 April 2010, Homelessness and Young People Task and Finish 

Group 
 
2.4  Cabinet, 12 April 2010, Road Resurfacing Task and Finish Group 
 
2.5 Cabinet, 6 September 2010, Recycling and Waste Minimisation Task and 

Finish Group 
 
2.6 Cabinet, 10 January 2011, Housing Allocations Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 

3.      CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees, Panels and Task and Finish Groups 

must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 

3.2    The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012-13 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 Failure to monitor the progress made in implementing recommendations 

made by Task & Finish Groups and Overview & Scrutiny Panels which have 
been accepted by Cabinet carries a reputational risk to the authority through a 
failure to demonstrate the outcomes from Overview and Scrutiny work. 

 

5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010 (“the Act”), the council has a legislative duty 

to have ‘due regard’ to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality 
and fostering good relations in the contexts of age, disability, gender 

12



  

reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion or belief and sexual 
orientation. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as 

relating to matters within its remit, the responsibility of the Committee is to 
perform the Overview and Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role with respect to diversity and inclusiveness; 
and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment 
and retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff 
development, equalities and health and safety. 

 

6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, 
Performance & Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 

 
6.1 Task and Finish Group reviews have the scope to consider value for money 

issues which identify how well the Council is managing and using its 
resources to deliver value for money and better and more sustainable 
outcomes for local people.   

 
6.2 Where there are financial implications linked to recommendations, these are 

identified by the Task and Finish Group/Scrutiny Panel for Cabinet to consider 
alongside recommendations. 

 
6.3 Any financial implications arising will be managed within existing Service 

Directorate budgets.   
 
 

7. LEGAL ISSUES  
 
7.1  Under Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000, the Council’s executive 

arrangements are required to include provision for appointment of an 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee with specified powers, including the power 
to make reports or recommendations to the authority or the executive with 
respect to the discharge of any functions which are the responsibility of the 
executive. 

 
 

8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS  
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, 

Article 6 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Overview & Scrutiny Committees are set out in 

the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Constitution).   
 
8.3 Item 8 of Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee Terms of 

Reference states that its role is:   
 

13



  

“To coordinate and monitor the work of scrutiny panels and task and finish 
groups, including considering reports and recommendations and referring to 
the relevant decision-making body.”   
 
 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
 
9.1    As stated at paragraph 7 above, under Section 21 of the Local Government 

Act 2000, the Council’s executive arrangements are required to include 
provision for appointment of an Overview and Scrutiny Committee with 
specified powers, including the power to make reports or recommendations to 
the authority or the executive with respect to the discharge of any functions 
which are the responsibility of the executive.  In respect of the exercise of the 
Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s powers to 
coordinate and monitor the work of overview and scrutiny task and finish 
groups / scrutiny panels, it is good practice to monitor the progress and 
impact of recommendations made. 

 
9.2  In May 2009, the council adopted a ‘task and finish’ group approach to some 

of their overview and scrutiny work.  Council agreed that task and finish 
groups would be time-limited to ensure that recommendations were made to 
the relevant decision-making body in a timely manner.  On the whole, task 
and finish groups have completed their work over a three-month period.  
However, this timescale is flexible where circumstances mean that a review 
should be run over a shorter or extended period. 

 
9.3 Since May 2009, a total of 16 task and finish groups and scrutiny panels have 

concluded their work on the following topics:- 
 

• Enterprise in the Borough (3rd February 2010) 

• School Places Planning (3rd February 2010) 

• Advice Provision in the Borough (22nd February 2010) 

• Homelessness and Young People (12th April 2010) 

• Road Resurfacing (12th April 2010)  

• Recycling and Waste Minimisation (6th September 2010)  

• Remodelling Older People’s Housing with Support (20th October 2010) 

• Council’s Response to Cold Weather (20th October 2010) 

• Housing Allocations Overview and Scrutiny Panel (10th January 2011) 

• Domestic Violence (7th March 2011) 

• Fostering Recruitment (14th September 2011) 

• Secondary School Places Overview and Scrutiny Panel (9thJanuary 
2012) 

• Health and Social Care Integration (4th April 2012) 

• Early Intervention and Prevention Services (Children’s Services) (4th April 
2012) 

• Contract Monitoring and Community Benefit (4th April 2012) 

• Carbon Footprint (4th April 2012) 
 

14



  

9.4 In order for the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
have an effective oversight of the work of task and finish groups, it is 
important for council services (or external bodies) to evidence the extent to 
which recommendations accepted by the Cabinet (or external agency) have 
been implemented.  To this end, the Scrutiny Office requested that services 
provide an update on the implementation of accepted recommendations at 
six-monthly intervals (from the date of reporting to Cabinet or external 
agency). 

 
9.5 Updates are now due in relation to the following task and finish groups and 

overview and scrutiny panels: 
 

• School Places Planning Task and Finish Group 

• Homelessness and Young People Task and Finish Group 

• Road Resurfacing Task and Finish Group 

• Recycling and Waste Minimisation Task and Finish Group 

• Housing Allocations Overview and Scrutiny Panel 

• Advice Provision in the Borough Task and Finish Group (the updates for 
this TFG were not available at the time of publication and will be circulated 
separately)  

 
9.6 An update from services in relation to the scrutiny panels/task and finish 

groups (referred to at 9.5 above) is set out at Appendix A. The Committee 
are requested to comment on information provided in the update report.  

 
9.7 Information contained within the Task and Finish Group update report will also 

be circulated to Members that served on the relevant task and finish.  Those 
Members will be requested to feed back any comments that they have on the 
updates provided by services to the Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee Chairman and Scrutiny Office.  Any comments will be 
reported to the Committee to enable appropriate action to be taken. 

 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 

Cleared by Finance MC/JH 

Cleared by Legal  POJ 

  
. 
 

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



C
o
u
n
c
il
’s
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 C
o
ld
 W
e
a
th
e
r 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 2
0
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

ra
ft
 W

in
te

r 
S
e
rv

ic
e
 

P
o
lic

y 
a
n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 b

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 

fo
r 
a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 
th

e
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 

(c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 1

s
t 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

: 
 *E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

h
a
v
in

g
 r
e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 m
a
d
e
 b

y 
T
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
s
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 f
o
r 

a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 (
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 

c
o
n
s
tr
a
in

ts
);
 

 *A
n
 a

m
e
n
d
m

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 F

o
o
tw

a
y 

c
la

s
s
if
ic

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 

fo
o
tw

a
y
s
 i
n
 c

lo
s
e
 p

ro
x
im

it
y
 

to
 o

u
t-
o
f-
c
e
n
tr
e
 r
a
ilw

a
y
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rg

ro
u
n
d
 s

ta
ti
o
n
s
; 
a
n
d
 

 *I
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 3

.8
 o

f 
th

e
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

P
la

n
 o

f 
th

e
 c

ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
in

g
 

re
q
u
e
s
ts

 f
o
r 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ri
t 

b
in

s
. 

 

                 

G
r
e
e
n

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T

h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
” 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

F
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
A
ll 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 P

la
n
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
o
p
te

d
. 
 

 N
o
te

 t
h
e
 W

in
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
s
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 e

v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r 
w

ill
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 t
o
 p

re
p
a
re

 t
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 P

la
n
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

T
h
e
 W

in
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 
th

e
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
o
b
ta

in
in

g
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l 
v
ia

 a
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
D

P
R

 (
C

h
ri
s
 C

h
ry

s
o
s
to

m
o
u
 1

7
/1

1
/1

1
) 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
  

T
h
e
 W

in
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 
th

e
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 w

a
s
 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 
T
h
is

 P
la

n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r
e
v
is

e
d
 f
o
r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 
w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry

s
o
s
to

m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie

f 
E
n
g
in

e
e
r 

(I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
),
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
  

 P
a
u
l 
B

ra
g
g
, 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

(N
e
tw

o
rk

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

  

17



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

 T
h
e
 G

ro
u
p
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 W

in
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 f
it
 

fo
r 
p
u
rp

o
s
e
 a

n
d
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 a

t 
it
s
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
to

 e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
a
n
 r
e
s
p
o
n
d
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

ly
 t
o
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
c
o
ld

 w
e
a
th

e
r 
a
n
d
 s

n
o
w

fa
ll.

  
 

       

R
e
d

 

 C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T

h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
” 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

P
a
rt
ia

lly
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
 w

a
s
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 £

7
0
2
K
 t
h
e
 

p
re

v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 
(2

0
0
9
/1

0
) 
to

 £
5
9
9
K
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
w

a
s
 s

u
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
th

e
 

c
o
s
t 
o
f 
p
ro

v
id

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

T
h
e
 W

in
te

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 £

3
3
5
,3

0
0
. 
T
h
is

 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
t,
 p

a
rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
f 
th

e
 f
o
rt
h
c
o
m

in
g
 w

in
te

r 
is

 o
f 
s
im

ila
r 

s
e
v
e
ri
ty

 a
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
tw

o
 w

in
te

rs
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
w

a
s
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
b
y
 £

1
2
2
,9

4
6
, 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

c
o
s
t 
w

a
s
 £

4
5
8
,2

4
6
. 
T
h
e
 2

0
1
2
/1

3
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
a
t 
£
4
1
7
,7

3
0
  

  

 C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry

s
o
s
to

m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie

f 
E
n
g
in

e
e
r 

(I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
),
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
  

 P
a
u
l 
B

ra
g
g
, 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

(N
e
tw

o
rk

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

    

18



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

b
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 a

 
p
ilo

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
t 
o
f 
a
 

‘c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 k

e
e
p
e
r’
 (
w

it
h
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 
th

e
 

e
q
u
it
a
b
le

 d
is

tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
ri
t 

s
to

c
k
s
 a

m
o
n
g
s
t 

n
e
ig

h
b
o
u
ri
n
g
 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

) 
to

 
b
e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

e
x
p
lo

re
d
 i
n
it
ia

lly
: 

 *G
o
ld

e
rs

 G
re

e
n
 –

 C
llr

 D
e
a
n
 

C
o
h
e
n
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 t
w

o
 r
o
a
d
s
 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
d
e
ta

ils
 

*C
h
ip

p
in

g
 B

a
rn

e
t 
–
 C

llr
 

S
te

p
h
e
n
 S

o
w

e
rb

y
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 
tw

o
 r
o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 c
o
n
ta

c
t 
d
e
ta

ils
 

*L
o
c
a
l 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 –
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 
S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 

d
e
ta

ils
 o

f 
tw

o
 p

a
rt
ic

ip
a
ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 
 F
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
s
n
o
w

 o
r 
ic

e
, 
a
n
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b
e
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

         

G
r
e
e
n

 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T

h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 

F
in

is
h
 G

ro
u
p
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
” 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

F
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ilo
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
c
h
m

e
n
t 
(A

p
p
e
n
d
ix

 B
) 
p
ro

v
id

e
s
 d

e
ta

ils
. 
A
s
 p

e
r 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

’s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

P
la

n
, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 t
h
is

 s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 a

 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
tw

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 a

 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

tw
o
 r
o
a
d
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

T
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.
 T

h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 

G
ro

u
p
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ilo

t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 a

im
 i
s
 t
o
 e

x
te

n
d
 

th
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 c

o
v
e
r 
u
p
 t
o
 2

0
 r
o
a
d
s
 a

n
d
 a

 s
im

ila
r 
n
u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
(C

h
ri
s
  

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 p

ilo
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 r
e
b
ra

n
d
e
d
 a

s
 G

ri
t 
P
le

d
g
e
b
a
n
k
 a

n
d
 c

o
v
e
re

d
 s

o
m

e
 2

4
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 1

5
 s

tr
e
e
ts

. 
T
h
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
a
n
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 

in
to

 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
w

in
te

r 
s
e
a
s
o
n
. 

C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry

s
o
s
to

m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie

f 
E
n
g
in

e
e
r 

(I
n
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu

re
),
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
  

 P
a
u
l 
B

ra
g
g
, 

H
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

(N
e
tw

o
rk

 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t)
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 

19



b
y 

th
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
M

e
m

b
e
r 
a
n
d
 

re
le

v
a
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 (
o
r 
o
th

e
rw

is
e
) 
o
f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
. 
S
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia

l 
a
re

a
s
, 

th
e
 ‘
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

k
e
e
p
e
r’
 

c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r
o
lle

d
-o

u
t 

a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 

to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

e
in

g
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 
to

 f
a
c
ili
ta

te
 t
h
is

. 

 

20



H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 1
2
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 

T
h
a
t 
C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 a
 Y
o
u
th
 

H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

a
t 
ri
s
k
 o
f 
h
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
 

 

           

G
R

E
E

N
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
th
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 5
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
.”
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
c
o
n
c
e
rn
 a
b
o
u
t 
d
u
p
lic
a
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 r
e
c
o
g
n
is
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 j
o
in
t 
C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 

P
la
n
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 a
g
re
e
d
. 
A
 s
tr
a
te
g
ic
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 g
ro
u
p
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 

e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 a
n
d
 a
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
rs
o
n
’s
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 g
ro
u
p
 i
s
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
in
g
 t
h
is
 w
o
rk
. 
In
 

a
d
d
it
io
n
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 

to
 a
s
s
is
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 p
a
th
w
a
y
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 a
re
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
ft
e
r,
 l
e
a
v
in
g
 c
a
re
 o
r 
in
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 n
e
e
d
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 w
o
rk
 o
f 
N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C
a
re
 A
d
v
is
o
ry
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 i
s
 a
lm
o
s
t 
c
o
m
p
le
te
 a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
d
ic
a
ti
n
g
 

th
a
t 
s
u
p
p
ly
 o
f 
a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 i
s
 i
n
 b
a
la
n
c
e
 (
ta
k
in
g
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 a
n
d
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 B
a
rb
a
ra
 L
a
n
g
s
to
n
e
 H
o
u
s
e
) 
b
u
t 
th
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 s
ti
ll 

w
o
rk
 t
o
 d
o
 t
o
 r
e
 s
h
a
p
e
 s
o
m
e
 o
f 
th
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 

m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
la
n
 a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 

lig
h
t 
o
f 
th
e
s
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 

  U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
llo
w
in
g
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 N
C
A
S
 a
re
 n
o
w
 

b
e
in
g
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
; 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 i
s
 r
e
-c
o
n
fi
g
u
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
re
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t.
 N
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 w
ill
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
la
n
 

a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 k
e
p
t 
u
n
d
e
r 
re
v
ie
w
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 

N
e
w
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
ts
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 (
w
e
f:
 0
1
 0
6
 1
2
).
 C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 P
la
n
 

a
n
d
 A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 b
e
in
g
 u
p
d
a
te
d
. 
 

 

J
a
m
e
s
 T
a
y
lo
r,
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 S
u
e
 T
o
m
lin
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 F
lo
 A
rm
s
tr
o
n
g
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

21



 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
a
 p
ilo
t 
is
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 

e
x
te
n
d
in
g
 t
h
e
 p
e
ri
o
d
 o
f 

s
h
o
rt
 s
ta
y
 a
t 
th
e
 C
ra
s
h
 

P
a
d
 f
ro
m
 a
 m
a
x
im
u
m
 o
f 

th
re
e
 t
o
 f
o
u
r 
w
e
e
k
s
, 
to
 

e
n
a
b
le
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 s
ta
ff
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
ti
m
e
 

to
 w
o
rk
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 

p
ro
b
le
m
s
. 
 

        C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
th
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 5
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

P
la
n
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
is
 i
s
 u
n
d
e
rw
a
y
 a
n
d
 b
e
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t 
o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 l
e
n
g
th
 o
f 
s
ta
y 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 f
o
r 
a
 c
o
o
lin
g
 o
ff
 p
e
ri
o
d
. 
T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 d
is
c
e
rn
a
b
le
 

im
p
a
c
t 
o
n
 a
v
a
ila
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 C
ra
s
h
 P
a
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
, 
b
u
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
ly
 w
ill
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 b
u
t 
C
ra
s
h
 P
a
d
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
(s
e
e
 a
b
o
v
e
).
 M
o
re
 

fl
e
x
ib
ili
ty
, 
c
le
a
re
r 
o
u
tp
u
ts
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
d
 e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 o
n
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 

re
p
o
rt
in
g
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t.
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
  

J
a
m
e
s
 T
a
y
lo
r,
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 S
u
e
 T
o
m
lin
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 F
lo
 A
rm
s
tr
o
n
g
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 
        

22



 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
o
n
s
it
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 i
s
 

p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
t 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 

L
a
n
g
s
to
n
e
 H
o
u
s
e
, 

th
ro
u
g
h
 m
o
re
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

re
d
e
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
ta
ff
. 
T
h
is
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 m
a
d
e
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 o
u
ts
id
e
 

tr
a
d
it
io
n
a
l 
o
ff
ic
e
 h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 

e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 

o
f 
p
ro
v
id
in
g
 s
ta
rt
e
r 

p
a
c
k
s
 t
o
 h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 a
t 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 

L
a
n
g
s
to
n
 H
o
u
s
e
 –
 

in
c
lu
d
in
g
 b
e
d
d
in
g
 a
n
d
 

k
it
c
h
e
n
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
–
 b
e
 

in
v
e
s
ti
g
a
te
d
. 
 

            A
M

B
E

R
  

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
th
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 5
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 r
e
g
a
rd
in
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 u
s
e
 o
f 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 L
a
n
g
s
to
n
e
 H
o
u
s
e
 a
re
 

b
e
in
g
 a
d
d
re
s
s
e
d
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 R
a
p
id
 I
m
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
P
ro
je
c
t 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
 

n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
; 
th
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

s
ta
ff
 f
ro
m
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 s
it
e
 w
it
h
 e
ff
e
c
t 
fr
o
m
 6

th
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 o
n
 s
it
e
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 o
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 L
a
n
g
s
to
n
e
 

H
o
u
s
e
 a
re
 b
e
g
in
n
in
g
 t
o
 h
a
v
e
 a
 p
o
s
it
iv
e
 i
m
p
a
c
t:
  

•
 

W
e
lc
o
m
e
 p
a
c
k
 n
o
w
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 b
e
d
d
in
g
  

•
 

A
 s
m
a
ll 
b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 f
o
r 
s
m
a
ll 
p
ra
c
ti
c
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 t
o
 h
e
lp
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 d
ro
p
 i
n
 e
.g
. 
s
m
a
ll 
e
x
e
rc
is
e
 e
q
u
ip
m
e
n
t 
 

•
 

F
iv
e
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 a
p
p
ly
 f
o
r 
U
n
iv
e
rs
it
y
 a
n
d
  

•
 

 

•
 

in
te
rv
ie
w
s
 

•
 

F
iv
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
tu
rn
e
d
 h
o
m
e
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 m
e
d
ia
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 r
e
a
lit
y
 c
h
e
c
k
in
g
 

•
 

In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 p
ro
to
c
o
l 
in
 p
la
c
e
 w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 b
e
tt
e
r 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 a
b
o
u
t 
c
lie
n
ts
 

•
 

E
n
g
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
w
it
h
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 n
o
w
 s
ta
rt
s
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 i
n
it
ia
l 
v
is
it
 a
n
d
 p
re
 

v
is
it
 a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t.
 V
ie
w
s
 a
n
d
 c
u
lt
u
re
 i
s
 c
h
a
n
g
in
g
 a
s
 y
o
u
n
g
 p
e
o
p
le
 s
e
e
 t
h
e
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 w
it
h
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
n
d
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

•
 

L
a
u
n
d
ry
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
n
s
ta
lle
d
 

•
 

T
h
e
re
 i
s
 n
o
w
 a
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
s
e
n
io
r 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
p
re
s
e
n
c
e
 a
t 
th
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 

•
 

P
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 u
s
e
 o
f 
o
u
ts
id
e
 s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 
g
a
rd
e
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 h
o
rt
ic
u
lt
u
re
 

w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 C
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 
a
n
d
 v
o
lu
n
te
e
rs
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
u
t 

to
g
e
th
e
r.
 

 

J
a
m
e
s
 T
a
y
lo
r,
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 S
u
e
 T
o
m
lin
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 F
lo
 A
rm
s
tr
o
n
g
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

23



U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 

N
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M
a
rc
h
 u
p
d
a
te
, 
h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
 e
n
ti
re
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

s
h
o
rt
ly
 w
h
e
re
 e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 o
f 
th
e
 o
u
tc
o
m
e
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
te
a
m
 h
a
s
 a
c
h
ie
v
e
d
 w
ill
 b
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 o
ri
g
in
a
l 
o
b
je
c
ti
v
e
s
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 T
h
e
re
 h
a
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
e
n
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
e
v
id
e
n
c
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
e
 w
o
rk
e
rs
 a
t 
B
a
rb
a
ra
 L
a
n
g
s
to
n
e
 

H
o
u
s
e
 t
o
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 t
ra
d
it
io
n
a
l 
w
o
rk
in
g
 h
o
u
rs
 t
o
 f
le
x
ib
le
 h
o
u
rs
 a
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts
 h
a
v
e
 l
a
rg
e
ly
 b
e
e
n
 m
e
t 
w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
w
o
rk
in
g
 

d
a
y
. 
T
h
is
 i
s
s
u
e
 w
ill
 b
e
 l
o
o
k
e
d
 a
t 
a
g
a
in
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
B
L
H
 h
a
s
 p
a
s
s
e
d
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 a
n
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
is
 

n
o
w
 u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
 a
s
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
s
e
 o
n
 B
L
H
 e
x
p
ir
e
s
 i
n
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
. 
 

 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

to
 C
a
b
in
e
t 

(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 n
e
w
 N
o
tt
in
g
 H
ill
 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 T
ru
s
t 
c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

fo
r 
fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 b
e
 

re
g
u
la
rl
y
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 a
n
d
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
t 
1
2
 m
o
n
th
s
  

 

         C
O

M
P

L
E

T
E

D
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
th
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 5
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
’s
 P
la
n
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

A
 p
ro
je
c
t 
g
ro
u
p
 r
e
p
re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 i
n
te
re
s
ts
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
is
 i
n
 

p
la
c
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
N
o
tt
in
g
 H
ill
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 T
ru
s
t’
s
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 a
n
d
 t
o
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 t
h
e
 

s
e
rv
ic
e
. 
A
 c
o
m
p
re
h
e
n
s
iv
e
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 i
n
 Q
1
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

U
p
d
a
te
 t

o
 f
o
llo

w
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

A
 r
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 
th
e
 O
u
tr
e
a
c
h
 B
a
rn
e
t 
fl
o
a
ti
n
g
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 

a
n
d
 h
a
s
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 s
a
ti
s
fa
c
to
ry
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 s
o
m
e
 

a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
a
n
 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 
p
la
n
 a
re
 t
h
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
o
f 
c
u
rr
e
n
t 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
 w
it
h
 N
o
tt
in
g
 H
ill
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 

T
ru
s
t 
a
n
d
 c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 s
ta
k
e
h
o
ld
e
rs
. 
 

 

J
a
m
e
s
 T
a
y
lo
r,
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 S
u
e
 T
o
m
lin
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 F
lo
 A
rm
s
tr
o
n
g
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

24



U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 -
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
g
u
la
r 
p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 
F
u
tu
re
 

c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 f
o
r 
d
e
c
is
io
n
 Q
3
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 t
o
 i
n
fo
rm
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p
ri
o
r 
to
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
e
x
p
ir
y
 3
1
.3
.2
0
1
3
  

S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

25



 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
a
 f
e
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
d
y
 i
s
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 

m
o
v
e
-o
n
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
y
o
u
n
g
 

h
o
m
e
le
s
s
 p
e
o
p
le
 u
ti
lis
in
g
 

p
ro
p
e
rt
ie
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p
ri
v
a
te
 

s
e
c
to
r 
to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le
 w
h
o
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a
 l
o
w
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 .
  

 

        A
m

b
e
r
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
th
a
n
k
e
d
 t
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
h
ic
h
 w
a
s
 v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
. 
T
h
e
 o
n
ly
 i
s
s
u
e
 r
a
is
e
d
 w
a
s
 t
h
a
t 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 1
 a
n
d
 5
 a
p
p
e
a
re
d
 t
o
 d
u
p
lic
a
te
 t
h
e
 C
h
ild
re
n
 a
n
d
 Y
o
u
n
g
 P
e
o
p
le
’s
 

P
la
n
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
is
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
th
e
re
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
b
le
 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
ie
s
 

e
n
g
a
g
in
g
 l
a
n
d
lo
rd
s
 a
n
d
 R
S
L
 p
a
rt
n
e
rs
, 
d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 a
re
 h
o
w
e
v
e
r 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
. 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 a
re
 a
ls
o
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 a
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 

a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 t
h
is
 w
ill
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

S
ig
n
if
ic
a
n
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 h
a
v
e
 a
ff
e
c
te
d
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 i
n
 

d
e
v
e
lo
p
in
g
 s
h
a
re
d
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 
H
o
w
e
v
e
r 
a
 r
e
c
e
n
t 
b
id
 t
o
 t
h
e
 D
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 

C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 L
o
c
a
l 
G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
fo
r 
H
o
m
e
le
s
s
n
e
s
s
 P
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 G
ra
n
t 
(Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
) 
h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
a
n
d
 a
 s
m
a
ll 
a
m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
fu
n
d
in
g
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 t
o
 

p
ro
g
re
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 T
h
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
e
s
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 e
v
a
lu
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
ta
g
e
 o
f 
b
id
d
e
rs
 u
n
d
e
r 
th
e
 f
ra
m
e
w
o
rk
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
. 
A
 p
ilo
t 
o
f 
th
e
 s
h
a
re
d
 h
o
u
s
e
 p
ro
je
c
t 
is
 b
e
in
g
 u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a
n
d
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
-

g
o
in
g
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
te
 a
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y
. 
C
o
n
ti
n
u
in
g
 u
n
c
e
rt
a
in
ty
 o
n
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h
o
u
s
in
g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 s
y
s
te
m
 m
a
y 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th
e
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm
 v
ia
b
ili
ty
 o
f 
th
e
 p
ro
je
c
t.
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 

P
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 a
c
c
o
m
m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
w
 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 b
y
 B
a
rn
e
t 
H
o
m
e
s
 b
u
t 

th
e
re
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 n
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
ro
g
re
s
s
 a
s
 n
o
 s
u
it
a
b
le
 p
ro
p
e
rt
y 
c
a
n
 b
e
 s
e
c
u
re
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ri
v
a
te
 r
e
n
te
d
 s
e
c
to
r.
 

J
a
m
e
s
 T
a
y
lo
r,
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 H
e
a
d
 o
f 

S
tr
a
te
g
ic
 

C
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
in
g
, 

A
d
u
lt
 S
o
c
ia
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
  

 S
u
e
 T
o
m
lin
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

Im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 

H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

 F
lo
 A
rm
s
tr
o
n
g
 

D
iv
is
io
n
a
l 
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 
Y
o
u
th
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
e
rv
ic
e
, 

C
h
ild
re
n
's
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
  

 

 

26



H
o
u
s
in
g
 A
ll
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 &
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
–
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 1
0
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 

 * 
th

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 r
e
g
is

te
r 
a
n
d
 

re
p
la

c
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 a

 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 o

f 
‘li

v
e
’ 

c
a
s
e
s
; 

 * 
re

p
la

c
in

g
 t
h
e
 p

o
in

ts
 

s
y
s
te

m
 w

it
h
 a

 b
a
n
d
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
; 
a
n
d
 

 * 
th

e
 c

re
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

le
tt
in

g
s
 p

o
lic

y
 w

h
ic

h
 

re
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 

(v
o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
, 
w

o
rk

in
g
, 

in
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

r 
p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 
s
e
rv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

rm
e
d
 

fo
rc

e
s
).
 

 

        C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

1
. 

T
h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 r
e
p
o
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

A
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
b
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

2
. 

T
h
a
t 
th

e
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

in
o
ri
ty

 r
e
p
o
rt
 b

e
 n

o
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
. 

3
. 

T
h
a
t 
C

a
b
in

e
t’
s
 t
h
a
n
k
s
 b

e
 e

x
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
fo

r 
th

e
ir
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 

th
is

 r
e
v
ie

w
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

A
ll 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 
 

 A
s
 s

ta
te

d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

, 
th

e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ll 
b
e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

    

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

  

27



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 r
e
g
is

te
r 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
 r
e
g
is

te
r 
h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 

c
lo

s
e
d
 b

y
: 

 * 
W

ri
ti
n
g
 t
o
 a

ll 
th

o
s
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 r
e
g
is

te
r;
 a

n
d
 

 * 
In

tr
o
d
u
c
in

g
 a

n
 o

n
lin

e
 

s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
to

 
a
llo

w
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 
to

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
h
ic

h
 b

a
n
d
 

th
e
y
 w

o
u
ld

 b
e
 p

la
c
e
d
 i
n
, 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
m

 t
o
 

d
e
te

rm
in

e
 w

h
e
th

e
r 
th

e
y
 

a
re

 e
lig

ib
le

 f
o
r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
. 

          C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

A
n
 o

n
lin

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
. 

 L
e
tt
e
rs

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 a
ll 

th
o
s
e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
is

te
r.
 I
n
s
te

a
d
, 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 
o
f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

lo
s
u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 r
e
g
is

te
r 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 
a
llo

c
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

e
re

 w
id

e
ly

 p
u
b
lic

is
e
d
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

 •
 

A
n
 a

rt
ic

le
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 e

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
B

a
rn

e
t 
F
ir
s
t;
  

•
 

A
rt
ic

le
 i
n
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
’ 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
 e

d
it
io

n
 o

f 
“A

t 
H

o
m

e
”;
  

•
 

N
o
ti
c
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
re

s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
C

h
o
ic

e
 B

a
s
e
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
 a

d
v
e
rt
s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
F
e
b
ru

a
ry

, 
M

a
rc

h
 a

n
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
; 

•
 

D
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
b
y
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 c

a
s
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

a
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 h

ig
h
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 u
n
d
e
r 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
e
m

e
; 

•
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 w

ro
te

 t
o
 a

ll 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

te
n
a
n
ts

 r
e
g
is

te
re

d
 f
o
r 
a
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r;
 

a
n
d
  

•
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
c
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

n
d
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
’ 
w

e
b
s
it
e
s
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 H

o
m

e
 C

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

e
b
s
it
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
  

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

28



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 
s
h
o
u
ld

 g
iv

e
 d

u
e
 r
e
g
a
rd

 
to

 c
h
ild

re
n
’s

 e
x
is

ti
n
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

h
e
n
 o

ff
e
ri
n
g
 

p
ro

p
e
rt
ie

s
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 u
n
d
e
r 

a
s
s
is

te
d
 c

h
o
ic

e
. 

   C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 d
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 

a
re

 a
t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
p
ro

p
e
rt
ie

s
, 
w

h
e
n
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
o
ff
e
rs

 o
f 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

 

29



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
a
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
e
w

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
o
lic

y
 b

e
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 a

t 
s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 w

it
h
 a

 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

ft
e
r 
tw

o
 y

e
a
rs

 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

re
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 O
v
e
rv

ie
w

 
a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
. 

       C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

d
 a

ft
e
r 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
s
ix

 m
o
n
th

s
 

(i
.e

. 
fr
o
m

 1
s
t  A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
1
) 
a
n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 o
v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 c

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t.
 P

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
c
a
rr

y
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 

e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 a

re
 i
n
 h

a
n
d
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

 A
n
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 u

n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
, 
b
u
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

u
n
ti
l 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
lis

m
 A

c
t 
c
a
n
 b

e
 

ta
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t.
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

 E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 c

a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 4

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 a

n
d
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

S
C

 o
n
 1

8
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
. 
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

 

30



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
a
ll 

fu
tu

re
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 r
e
g
a
rd

le
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

o
ff
e
re

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
. 

   C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
: 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
te

g
ra

l 
p
a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 (
p
a
ra

g
ra

p
h
 

3
.7

 r
e
fe

rs
).
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

N
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
a
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

 

31



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 

e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 

s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

le
a
rl
y
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 

to
 r
e
m

o
v
e
 a

n
y
 

s
u
b
je

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

     C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 

T
h
e
 v

o
lu

n
te

e
ri
n
g
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
n
tr
ib

u
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

le
a
rl
y
 

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 w

it
h
 i
n
p
u
t 
fr
o
m

 C
o
m

m
U

N
IT

Y
 B

a
rn

e
t,
 w

h
o
 a

ls
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

to
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

. 
 T

h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ix
 m

o
n
th

 e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

T
h
e
 r
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

is
 e

le
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
u
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 

w
a
s
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

. 
C

o
m

m
U

N
IT

Y
 B

a
rn

e
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

o
ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 o

ff
ic

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

fu
tu

re
 s

h
o
u
ld

 t
h
is

 b
e
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

 

32



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
s
tr
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
o
rt
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 
th

a
t:
 

 * 
A

ll 
p
ro

p
e
rt
ie

s
 a

re
 

o
ff
e
re

d
 i
n
 a

 r
e
a
s
o
n
a
b
le

 
c
o
n
d
it
io

n
; 
a
n
d
 

 *T
u
rn

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t
im

e
s
 f
o
r 
re

-
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 i
s
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

 

      C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

 v
o
id

s
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 s
e
tt
in

g
 o

u
t 
th

e
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt
ie

s
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 i
n
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
n
ts

. 
T
h
e
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 h

o
ld

in
g
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 w

it
h
 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 r
e
v
ie

w
 t
h
is

 d
u
ri
n
g
 

J
u
ly

 2
0
1
1
. 
 

B
a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

 p
la

n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 v

o
id

s
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1

2
 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 b

ri
n
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 m

u
c
h
 c

lo
s
e
r 
to

 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
in

 L
o
n
d
o
n
, 
a
n
d
 w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 

to
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

rm
s
 L

e
n
g
th

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
O

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

th
is

 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
  
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
: 

V
o
id

 t
u
rn

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
im

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 t
o
 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 B

u
d
g
e
t 
O

S
C

. 
F
u
rt
h
e
r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 a

n
 O

p
ti
o
n
 A

p
p
ra

is
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
th

e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 C

R
C

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

 V
o
id

 t
u
rn

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
im

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
, 
w

it
h
 B

a
rn

e
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 

re
p
o
rt
in

g
 1

6
 d

a
y
s
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
2
 a

n
d
 1

5
 d

a
y
s
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
. 

P
e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 v

o
id

 t
u
rn

a
ro

u
n
d
 t
im

e
s
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

 p
ri
o
ri
ty

. 
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

33



   

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
s
 

th
a
t 
th

e
 v

e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

s
tr
e
a
m

lin
e
d
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 v

is
it
in

g
 e

lig
ib

le
 

a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

   C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
: 
 

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
1
 

T
h
e
 v

e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

tr
e
a
m

lin
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
lis

ti
c
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
th

a
t 
is

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
e
lig

ib
le

 a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

; 
th

is
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 h

o
m

e
 

v
is

it
s
 i
n
 m

a
n
y
 c

a
s
e
s
. 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 U
p
d
a
te

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

P
a
u
l 
S

h
ip

w
a
y
, 
 

S
tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 
P

e
rf
o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

P
la

n
n
in

g
, 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

34



R
e
c
y
c
li
n
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M

in
im

is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 6
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
a
ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t 
b
e
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 t
o
 

p
a
rt
ic
ip
a
te
 i
n
 a
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

in
c
e
n
ti
v
e
 s
c
h
e
m
e
. 

      
G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.”
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t:
 “
C
a
b
in
e
t 
w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
.”
 

 
U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
e
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 C
h
a
lle
n
g
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 u
p
d
a
te
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm
 t
h
e
 W

a
tc
h
 

Y
o
u
r 
W
a
s
te
 p
ro
je
c
t,
 w
it
h
 a
 g
re
a
te
r 
e
m
p
h
a
s
is
 o
n
 w
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
s
 w
e
ll 

a
s
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
. 
A
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
is
 w
o
rk
, 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 w
e
e
k
 o
f 
in
te
n
s
iv
e
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 W

a
s
te
 &
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
, 
a
n
d
 c
a
rr
y
 o
u
t 
a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
is
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
s
 a
im
e
d
 a
t 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
w
it
h
 a
 

re
la
te
d
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 (
“G
re
e
n
 M
a
tt
e
rs
”)
 a
im
e
d
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 

In
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 a
 d
a
y
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 t
o
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is
e
 

B
a
rn
e
t’
s
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
. 
S
ix
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

w
ill
 b
e
 s
e
n
d
in
g
 a
 d
e
le
g
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
e
 e
v
e
n
t 
is
 j
o
in
tl
y
 o
rg
a
n
is
e
d
 b
y
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 

th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
M
a
y
 G
u
rn
e
y
, 
w
h
o
 a
re
 p
ro
v
id
in
g
 a
 p
ri
z
e
 

o
f 
£
5
0
0
 t
o
w
a
rd
s
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
e
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 
p
ro
je
c
ts
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 

A
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 d
a
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

re
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
, 
w
it
h
 a
ro
u
n
d
 6
0
 

p
u
p
ils
 a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
. 
It
 i
s
 h
o
p
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
s
im
ila
r 
e
v
e
n
ts
 c
a
n
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 f
u
tu
re
 t
o
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
 w
it
h
 o
th
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
T
h
re
e
 W

a
tc
h
 Y
o
u
r 
W
a
s
te
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 a
n
d
 t
w
o
 

G
re
e
n
 M
a
tt
e
rs
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
. 
In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 t
h
re
e
 L
o
v
e
 

F
o
o
d
, 
H
a
te
 W

a
s
te
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 s
h
o
w
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 t
o
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 f
o
o
d
 

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

L
a
i,
 W

a
s
te
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
y
n
n
 B
is
h
o
p
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

35



w
a
s
te
 a
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

A
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
th
re
e
 W

a
tc
h
 Y
o
u
r 
W
a
s
te
 p
ro
je
c
ts
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
lly
 

c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 i
n
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
T
w
o
 o
f 
th
e
s
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
e
re
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 

w
it
h
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
o
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
m
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 t
h
e
ir
 f
o
o
d
 w
a
s
te
. 
T
w
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 

h
a
d
 t
h
e
a
tr
e
 s
h
o
w
s
 t
o
 p
ro
m
o
te
 c
o
m
p
o
s
ti
n
g
. 
T
h
re
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 h
a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
a
lk
s
 a
n
d
 a
s
s
e
m
b
lie
s
 o
n
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 

p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
 

 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
lo
w
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 b
e
 t
w
in
n
e
d
 w
it
h
 

h
ig
h
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 

s
h
a
re
 i
d
e
a
s
 a
n
d
 g
o
o
d
 

p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 

       
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.”
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t:
 “
C
a
b
in
e
t 
w
e
lc
o
m
e
d
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

re
la
ti
n
g
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
n
d
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
d
 c
lo
s
e
 w
o
rk
in
g
 b
e
tw
e
e
n
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
 i
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

A
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 e
v
e
n
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 e
n
a
b
le
 t
h
e
 s
ix
 

a
tt
e
n
d
in
g
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r 
d
u
ri
n
g
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 

o
f 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 p
re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
. 
T
h
e
 B
a
rn
e
t 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

A
c
ti
o
n
 R
o
u
n
d
 S
c
h
o
o
ls
 (
B
E
A
R
S
) 
s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m
a
tc
h
 u
p
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

th
a
t 
a
re
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 w
e
ll 
w
it
h
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
a
n
t 
id
e
a
s
 o
n
 h
o
w
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
. 

W
a
s
te
 &
 S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
ili
ty
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 l
in
k
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
it
h
 e
a
c
h
 o
th
e
r 
to
 s
p
re
a
d
 

g
o
o
d
 p
ra
c
ti
c
e
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 d
a
y
 t
o
 d
a
y
 w
o
rk
. 

  

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

L
a
i,
 W

a
s
te
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
y
n
n
 B
is
h
o
p
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

36



U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 d
a
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
e
n
ti
v
is
e
 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
 w
a
s
 h
e
ld
 i
n
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
 a
n
d
 p
ro
v
id
e
d
 a
n
 o
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
y
 

fo
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 s
h
a
re
 t
h
e
ir
 i
d
e
a
s
. 
T
h
e
 B
E
A
R
S
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 

n
e
tw
o
rk
in
g
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 h
e
ld
 e
a
c
h
 t
e
rm
, 
a
n
d
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
a
k
e
 l
in
k
s
 

b
e
tw
e
e
n
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

  
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
o
th
e
r 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 r
e
w
a
rd
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 a
n
d
 c
h
e
c
k
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
f 
th
e
ir
 

w
a
s
te
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 

     
G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
p
ro
v
id
e
rs
 o
p
e
ra
te
 r
e
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 m
e
t 
w
it
h
 

c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 R
e
c
y
c
le
b
a
n
k
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
w
h
ic
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 b
y
 

W
in
d
s
o
r 
&
 M
a
id
e
n
h
e
a
d
 a
n
d
 H
a
lt
o
n
 c
o
u
n
c
ils
. 
 R
e
c
y
c
le
b
a
n
k
 h
a
v
e
 s
a
id
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 a
re
 w
o
rk
in
g
 o
n
 a
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 w
it
h
in
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 p
ro
v
id
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
m
o
re
 r
e
le
v
a
n
c
e
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
th
a
n
 t
h
e
ir
 o
th
e
r 
s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 o
u
ts
id
e
 o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
, 

a
n
d
 m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 i
n
 e
a
rl
y
 2
0
1
1
. 
W
h
e
n
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 

a
v
a
ila
b
le
 i
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
n
 d
e
ta
il 
to
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
c
o
s
ts
 a
n
d
 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
a
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 i
n
 B
a
rn
e
t.
 R
e
c
y
c
le
b
a
n
k
 h
a
v
e
 a
g
re
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 w
ill
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 B
a
rn
e
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
a
ll 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
. 
O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 a
ls
o
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
d
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
w
it
h
 c
o
n
ta
c
ts
 f
o
r 
a
n
o
th
e
r 
re
w
a
rd
s
 s
c
h
e
m
e
, 
G
re
e
n
 P
o
in
ts
, 
in
 

D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r.
 

  

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

L
a
i,
 W

a
s
te
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
y
n
n
 B
is
h
o
p
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

37



U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 t
h
e
 R
e
c
y
c
le
b
a
n
k
 a
n
d
 G
re
e
n
 P
o
in
ts
 r
e
w
a
rd
 

s
c
h
e
m
e
s
. 
B
o
th
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 h
ig
h
 s
e
t-
u
p
 c
o
s
ts
 o
f 
a
p
p
ro
x
im
a
te
ly
 £
2
 p
e
r 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld
 p
e
r 
y
e
a
r.
 T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 l
e
v
y
 p
a
y
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 d
is
p
o
s
a
l 
o
f 
w
a
s
te
 

a
re
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 i
n
 a
rr
e
a
rs
. 
T
h
e
re
fo
re
 i
f 

re
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 d
e
liv
e
re
d
 a
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 w
a
s
te
 t
o
n
n
a
g
e
 f
o
r 
d
is
p
o
s
a
l,
 i
t 
w
ill
 

ta
k
e
 t
w
o
 y
e
a
rs
 b
e
fo
re
 t
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
s
e
e
s
 a
n
y
 b
e
n
e
fi
t 
fo
r 
it
s
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t.
 I
t 
is
 

th
e
re
fo
re
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 b
e
n
e
fi
ts
 o
f 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
in
g
 a
 r
e
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 a
re
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
 i
f 
a
n
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
e
v
y
 s
y
s
te
m
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
-y
e
a
r 
c
h
a
rg
in
g
. 
T
h
is
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 

A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 p
ro
c
u
re
m
e
n
t 
p
ro
je
c
t.
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

O
ff
ic
e
rs
 h
a
v
e
 s
u
b
m
it
te
d
 a
n
 E
x
p
re
s
s
io
n
 o
f 
In
te
re
s
t 
(E
O
I)
 f
o
r 
fu
n
d
in
g
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 W

e
e
k
ly
 C
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 S
u
p
p
o
rt
 S
c
h
e
m
e
. 
T
h
e
 E
O
I 
in
c
lu
d
e
d
 

fu
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 r
e
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 f
o
r 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
. 
S
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

C
a
b
in
e
t’
s
 a
p
p
ro
v
a
l,
 a
 f
in
a
l 
b
id
 w
ill
 b
e
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 f
o
r 
s
u
b
m
is
s
io
n
 i
n
 A
u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
2
. 
If
 t
h
e
 b
id
 i
s
 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l,
 a
 r
e
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 c
o
u
ld
 b
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
ro
m
 

th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 a
t 
th
e
 

e
a
rl
ie
s
t)
. 
If
 t
h
e
 b
id
 i
s
 n
o
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
it
 i
s
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 r
e
w
a
rd
 s
c
h
e
m
e
 b
e
 

re
c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 L
o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te
 A
u
th
o
ri
ty
 l
e
v
y
 s
y
s
te
m
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
-y
e
a
r 
c
h
a
rg
in
g
. 

 

38



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
ta
l 

s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 

in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
d
 e
it
h
e
r 

fo
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
r 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 b
in
 

s
iz
e
 a
n
d
 c
h
e
c
k
 a
g
a
in
s
t 

d
e
liv
e
ry
 o
n
 w
a
s
te
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg
e
ts
. 

     
G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
e
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 a
n
d
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 

re
v
ie
w
e
d
. 
D
e
ta
ile
d
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 o
n
g
o
in
g
 t
o
 a
s
s
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
ff
e
c
t 

o
f 
d
if
fe
re
n
t 
w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 f
o
r 
B
a
rn
e
t 
in
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu
re
 l
o
o
k
in
g
 a
t 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
, 
c
o
s
t 
a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 l
e
v
y
 f
e
e
s
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 o
f 

w
e
e
k
ly
 a
n
d
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
re
fu
s
e
, 
re
c
y
c
lin
g
 o
r 
o
rg
a
n
ic
 w
a
s
te
. 

T
h
e
 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
b
in
 s
iz
e
s
 w
o
u
ld
 i
n
v
o
lv
e
 h
ig
h
 c
o
s
ts
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
u
rc
h
a
s
in
g
 

n
e
w
 b
in
s
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
is
 o
p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 n
o
t 
b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 f
u
rt
h
e
r.
  
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
0
/1
1
 p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 
o
th
e
r 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 

b
e
in
g
 c
o
lla
te
d
 a
n
d
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
. 
T
h
e
 r
e
s
u
lt
s
 o
f 
w
h
ic
h
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 f
o
rm
 

p
a
rt
 o
f 
a
 f
u
tu
re
 r
e
p
o
rt
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t.
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 o
f 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
 4
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
o
 

w
a
s
te
 c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
to
 b
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
te
d
 f
ro
m
 t
h
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 
(O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 a
t 
th
e
 e
a
rl
ie
s
t)
. 
It
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 

th
a
t 
c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
g
a
rd
e
n
 w
a
s
te
 w
o
u
ld
 c
h
a
n
g
e
 f
ro
m
 w
e
e
k
ly
 t
o
 f
o
rt
n
ig
h
tl
y
. 

  

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

L
a
i,
 W

a
s
te
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
y
n
n
 B
is
h
o
p
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

    

39



R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 
O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
k
e
s
 a
 

h
o
lis
ti
c
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 w
h
e
n
 

re
-b
u
ild
in
g
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

e
s
ta
te
s
 t
o
 e
n
c
o
u
ra
g
e
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 w
a
s
te
 

m
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 

s
h
o
u
ld
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
s
ig
n
 

fe
a
tu
re
s
 o
f 
e
s
ta
te
s
 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 w
a
s
te
 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 

b
u
ild
in
g
 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 s
p
a
c
e
 f
o
r 

s
e
g
re
g
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 s
to
ra
g
e
 

o
f 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
s
, 
fo
o
d
 

w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 s
o
 o
n
. 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 b
in
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

a
ls
o
 b
e
 p
la
c
e
d
 i
n
 e
a
s
ily
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
ib
le
 a
re
a
s
 t
o
 

in
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 l
o
a
d
in
g
, 

s
to
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 p
ic
k
 u
p
 

a
re
a
s
 f
o
r 
d
o
m
e
s
ti
c
 

q
u
a
n
ti
ti
e
s
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
 

w
a
s
te
. 
A
 h
o
lis
ti
c
 

a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 s
h
o
u
ld
 a
ls
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 e
d
u
c
a
ti
n
g
 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
 o
n
 w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 

a
re
 a
b
le
 t
o
 r
e
c
y
c
le
. 

          C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

R
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 a
n
d
 W

a
s
te
 M
in
im
is
a
ti
o
n
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 b
e
 a
c
c
e
p
te
d
.”
 

 A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
c
o
m
m
e
n
t:
 “
C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
rs
 n
o
te
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
w
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 

p
e
rf
o
rm
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
p
u
rp
o
s
e
 b
u
ilt
 f
la
ts
 a
t 
o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

e
s
ta
te
s
 a
n
d
 q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
e
d
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
re
g
is
te
re
d
 s
o
c
ia
l 
la
n
d
lo
rd
s
 w
e
re
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
in
g
 a
c
ti
v
it
ie
s
 t
o
 i
m
p
ro
v
e
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 r
a
te
s
. 
T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
o
ff
ic
e
rs
 i
n
 H
o
u
s
in
g
 S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 l
o
o
k
 i
n
to
 t
h
is
 

m
a
tt
e
r.
” 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
is
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 o
n
g
o
in
g
. 
A
rc
h
it
e
c
ts
 a
n
d
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 m
u
s
t 
c
o
m
p
ly
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
m
e
n
ts
 o
n
 p
ro
v
is
io
n
 o
f 
re
fu
s
e
, 
o
rg
a
n
ic
 w
a
s
te
 a
n
d
 

re
c
y
c
lin
g
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
. 
T
h
e
 C
o
u
n
c
il’
s
 S
u
p
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ry
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 D
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
o
n
 

S
u
s
ta
in
a
b
le
 D
e
s
ig
n
 a
n
d
 C
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
o
n
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
s
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
rs
 t
o
 p
ro
v
id
e
 

s
u
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
s
p
a
c
e
 w
it
h
in
 f
la
ts
 f
o
r 
th
e
 s
to
ra
g
e
 o
f 
re
c
y
c
la
b
le
s
. 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
a
ls
 a
re
 c
h
e
c
k
e
d
 b
y
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
n
d
 a
re
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r
e
fu
s
e
 

c
o
lle
c
ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m
 a
n
d
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r 
M
a
y
 G
u
rn
e
y
 a
s
 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry
 b
e
fo
re
 

a
p
p
ro
v
a
l 
is
 g
iv
e
n
. 
B
o
th
 r
e
fu
s
e
 a
n
d
 M
a
y
 G
u
rn
e
y
 w
o
rk
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a
t 
in
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 

o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 
s
to
ra
g
e
 a
n
d
 f
a
c
ili
ti
e
s
 i
n
 s
e
c
u
re
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re
 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie
n
t 

fo
r 
m
a
n
a
g
in
g
 a
g
e
n
ts
 a
n
d
 r
e
s
id
e
n
ts
. 
 

In
 a
d
d
it
io
n
, 
re
s
id
e
n
ts
 w
h
o
 a
re
 n
e
w
 t
o
 t
h
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 n
o
w
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 

in
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
o
n
 r
e
c
y
c
lin
g
 s
e
rv
ic
e
s
, 
w
h
a
t 
th
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
c
y
c
le
 a
n
d
 h
o
w
 

th
e
y
 c
a
n
 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w
a
s
te
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
ir
 c
o
u
n
c
il 
ta
x
 m
a
ili
n
g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 

C
o
m
p
le
te
d
 

  

M
ic
h
a
e
l 

L
a
i,
 W

a
s
te
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 G
ro
u
p
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 L
y
n
n
 B
is
h
o
p
, 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 

D
ir
e
c
to
r,
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
 

 

40



U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 

 

 

41



42

This page is intentionally left blank



R
o
a
d
 R

e
s
u
rf

a
c
in

g
 T

a
s
k
 a

n
d
 F

in
is

h
 G

ro
u
p
 –

 C
a
b
in

e
t,
 1

2
 A

p
ri

l 
2
0
1
0
 

 R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
(a

c
c
e
p
te

d
) 

S
ta

tu
s
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 

O
ff
ic

e
rs

 
T
h
e
 S
c
h
e
m
e
 P
ri
o
ri
ti
s
a
ti
o
n
 

P
ro
c
e
d
u
re
 f
o
r 
P
la
n
n
e
d
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 M

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
, 
a
p
p
ro
v
e
d
 b
y 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 2
2
n
d
 J
u
ly
 

2
0
0
2
, 
s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 r
e
v
ie
w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 a
m
e
n
d
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o
rd
a
n
c
e
 w
it
h
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 

b
e
s
t 
p
ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 
in
tr
o
d
u
c
e
 a
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie
v
e
 b
e
s
t 
v
a
lu
e
 f
o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in
 t
h
e
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 

in
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
. 
 

 

          A
m

b
e
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
 

“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 w
e
re
 i
n
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
ri
b
u
te
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
. 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
w
a
y
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 

re
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
ys
te
m
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
s
 

th
e
 w
a
y 
fo
rw
a
rd
. 
T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
) 
i)
 a
n
d
 i
i)
 o
f 
th
e
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 

re
p
o
rt
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
e
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 d
e
la
y
e
d
 d
u
e
 t
o
 

th
e
 p
o
o
lin
g
 o
f 
re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 o
n
to
 t
h
e
 P
o
t 
H
o
le
 E
lim

in
a
ti
o
n
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
. 
It
 i
s
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 

th
a
t 
th
e
 P
ro
je
c
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n
e
w
 y
e
a
r.
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 o
f 
H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 i
s
 w
e
ll 
u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
 a
n
d
 i
s
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 i
n
 p
la
c
e
 i
n
 A
p
ri
l 

2
0
1
1
. 
 T
h
is
 w
ill
 f
a
c
ili
ta
te
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr
o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o
f 
a
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
, 

w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 a
ls
o
 r
e
fe
rr
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
 t
h
e
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 P
la
n
. 
 A
 g
a
p
 a
n
a
ly
s
is
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 u
n
d
e
r 
w
a
y
, 

th
e
 f
ir
s
t 
s
te
p
 i
n
 i
n
s
ta
lli
n
g
 a
n
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
y
s
te
m
. 
 I
t 
is
 a
n
ti
c
ip
a
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
n
e
x
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 (
2
0
1
2
/1
3
) 
w
ill
 b
e
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 u
s
in
g
 

th
e
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
S
y
s
te
m
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 
M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 (
H
A
M
P
) 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg
e
t 
o
f 
p
re
p
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 u
s
in
g
 H
A
M
P
 i
s
 

a
c
h
ie
v
a
b
le
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
ig
h
w
a
ys
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 p
re
p
a
re
d
 b
a
s
e
d
 o
n
 

H
A
M
P
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
s
. 
T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
d
ra
ft
 o
f 
H
A
M
P
 i
s
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 r
e
v
is
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp
o
ra
te
 

c
o
m
m
e
n
ts
 f
ro
m
 v
a
ri
o
u
s
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
. 
 

C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry
s
o
s
to
m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie
f 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 
–
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
  

   

43



 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
(a

c
c
e
p
te

d
) 

S
ta

tu
s
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 c
o
n
c
lu
d
e
 t
h
a
t 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 

s
u
b
-c
o
n
ta
c
to
rs
 w
o
rk
 

a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 c
o
n
tr
a
c
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
ti
o
n
 a
re
 a
d
e
q
u
a
te
 

a
n
d
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 r
e
te
n
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
th
e
 e
x
is
ti
n
g
 

a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
. 
 

 

        
C

o
m

p
le

te
d

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 

“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 w
e
re
 i
n
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
v
e
ry
 

h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
ri
b
u
te
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
. 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 
w
a
y
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 

ro
a
d
 r
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
s
y
s
te
m
 b
e
in
g
 

p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
) 
i)
 a
n
d
 i
i)
 o
f 

th
e
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

E
x
is
ti
n
g
 a
rr
a
n
g
e
m
e
n
ts
 w
ill
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 a
s
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
e
d
 a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 

re
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 b
u
d
g
e
t 
s
a
v
in
g
 p
ro
c
e
s
s
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 r
e
d
is
tr
ib
u
te
s
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 s
ta
ff
 t
o
 c
o
v
e
r 

a
ll 
a
s
p
e
c
ts
 o
f 
h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
in
c
lu
d
in
g
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 M

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
, 
to
 

e
n
s
u
re
 t
h
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 o
f 
m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 
a
ll 
s
u
b
-c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
rs
 w
o
rk
 i
s
 m
a
in
ta
in
e
d
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

T
h
e
 r
e
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 o
n
e
 C
le
rk
 o
f 
W
o
rk
s
 t
o
 s
p
e
c
if
ic
a
lly
 m

o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 q
u
a
lit
y
 

o
f 
w
o
rk
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
d
 b
y
 t
h
e
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
iv
e
 s
u
b
c
o
n
tr
a
c
to
r,
 a
s
 t
h
is
 w
a
s
 a
n
 a
re
a
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w
it
h
 n
o
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

N
o
 u
p
d
a
te
 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
. 

 

C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry
s
o
s
to
m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie
f 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 
–
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
  

  

     

44



R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
(a

c
c
e
p
te

d
) 

S
ta

tu
s
 

 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 

 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 
O

ff
ic

e
r 

T
h
e
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
 t
h
a
t:
  

 i)
 a
 f
u
ll 
s
u
rv
e
y
 b
e
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
n
 o
f 
th
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 t
o
 

e
n
a
b
le
 f
o
o
tw
a
ys
 s
c
h
e
m
e
s
 

to
 b
e
 p
ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
d
 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly
; 

a
n
d
  

 ii)
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

w
o
rk
s
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t,
 a
s
 f
a
r 
a
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
to
 

c
o
n
s
is
te
n
t 
s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
c
ro
s
s
 

th
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
, 
u
s
in
g
 t
h
e
 

s
a
m
e
 m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 w
h
e
re
v
e
r 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

           A
m

b
e
r 

   

C
a
b
in
e
t 
re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 r
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
is
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 

F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 w
e
re
 i
n
 g
e
n
e
ra
l 
v
e
ry
 h
e
lp
fu
l 
a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
tr
u
c
ti
v
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
ri
b
u
te
 b
e
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 

th
e
 G
ro
u
p
 f
o
r 
th
e
ir
 w
o
rk
. 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
a
g
re
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
re
 i
s
 a
 m

o
re
 e
ff
ic
ie
n
t 

w
a
y
 o
f 
ru
n
n
in
g
 t
h
e
 r
o
a
d
 r
e
s
u
rf
a
c
in
g
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 a
n
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
s
s
e
t 
m
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

s
ys
te
m
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 i
s
 t
h
e
 w
a
y
 f
o
rw
a
rd
. 
T
h
e
 a
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 c
) 
i)
 

a
n
d
 i
i)
 o
f 
th
e
 G
ro
u
p
’s
 r
e
p
o
rt
 m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 b
e
in
g
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
.”
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 D
e
c
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 

T
h
e
 s
u
rv
e
y
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
is
s
io
n
e
d
 a
n
d
 i
s
 d
u
e
 t
o
 b
e
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 b
y 
th
e
 e
n
d
 o
f 
th
e
 

c
a
le
n
d
a
r 
y
e
a
r.
  
It
 i
s
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 t
o
 p
ro
d
u
c
e
 a
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s
c
h
e
d
u
le
 o
f 

m
a
te
ri
a
ls
 t
o
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 a
n
d
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 t
o
 b
e
 t
h
e
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
T
h
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
w
ill
 b
e
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
e
d
 t
o
 g
a
in
 a
g
re
e
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
is
 a
p
p
ro
a
c
h
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
1
: 

A
 f
u
ll 
s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
’s
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
p
le
te
d
 a
n
d
 u
s
e
d
 a
s
 a
 b
a
s
is
 t
o
 

p
re
p
a
re
 t
h
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 h
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
. 
 P
la
n
n
e
d
 

F
o
o
tw
a
y
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
u
s
in
g
 s
ta
n
d
a
rd
 m

a
te
ri
a
ls
 a
c
ro
s
s
 t
h
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 

T
h
e
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
M
e
m
b
e
r 
h
a
s
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 d
e
p
a
rt
m
e
n
t 
c
o
n
c
e
n
tr
a
te
 o
n
 

c
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
s
 r
a
th
e
r 
th
a
n
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 a
n
d
, 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
th
e
 c
u
rr
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 f
u
tu
re
 

fo
o
tw
a
y 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 b
u
d
g
e
ts
 a
re
 e
x
p
e
c
te
d
 t
o
 b
e
 l
o
w
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
: 

A
 f
u
ll 
c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 o
f 
a
ll 
th
e
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 F
o
o
tw
a
y
s
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
th
is
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 

y
e
a
r 
(2
0
1
0
/1
1
) 

 N
o
 B
o
ro
u
g
h
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
o
o
tw
a
y
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
th
is
 f
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
y
e
a
r.
 

H
o
w
e
v
e
r,
 f
o
o
tw
a
y 
m
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 w
o
rk
 w
a
s
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 o
u
t 
fu
n
d
e
d
 b
y
 L
IP
 f
u
n
d
in
g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

T
h
e
 2
0
1
2
/1
3
 h
ig
h
w
a
ys
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 m

a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 p
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 p
ro
v
id
e
s
 f
o
r 
£
3
.5
m
 s
p
e
n
t 

o
n
 C
a
rr
ia
g
e
w
a
y
s
 a
n
d
 £
3
m
 s
p
e
n
t 
o
n
 F
o
o
tw
a
ys
. 
A
n
o
th
e
r 
F
o
o
tw
a
y
 c
o
n
d
it
io
n
 s
u
rv
e
y
 i
s
 

p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 
th
is
 y
e
a
r 
o
n
 5
0
%
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
tw
o
rk
. 
 

 

C
h
ri
s
 

C
h
ry
s
o
s
to
m
o
u
, 

C
h
ie
f 
E
n
g
in
e
e
r 
–
 

In
fr
a
s
tr
u
c
tu
re
, 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
&
 

O
p
e
ra
ti
o
n
s
  

 

 

45



46

This page is intentionally left blank



S
c
h
o
o
l 
P
la
c
e
s
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 –
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 3
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
0
 

 R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 

W
h
ils
t 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 

n
e
c
e
s
s
it
y
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 o
n
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
, 

th
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 c
o
m
m
it
 

to
 d
e
liv
e
r 
S
c
h
o
o
l 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 o
n
 a
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
b
a
s
is
 w
h
e
n
 

p
o
s
s
ib
le
. 

      G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t,
 w
h
ils
t 
re
c
o
g
n
is
in
g
 t
h
e
 n
e
c
e
s
s
it
y
 o
f 
te
m
p
o
ra
ry
 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 o
n
 o
c
c
a
s
io
n
, 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 c
o
m
m
it
 t
o
 d
e
liv
e
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 o
n
 

a
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
b
a
s
is
 w
h
e
n
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
.”
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 
 A
 r
e
p
o
rt
 w
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 

s
e
tt
in
g
 o
u
t 
th
e
 m
e
d
iu
m
-t
e
rm
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
s
, 
p
ri
m
a
ri
ly
 t
h
ro
u
g
h
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
, 
w
h
e
re
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 a
llo
w
s
. 

T
h
e
 g
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t 
is
 c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 r
e
v
ie
w
in
g
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
: 
 A
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 

B
ro
a
d
fi
e
ld
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 £
9
.5
m
 o
f 
B
a
s
ic
 N
e
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
te
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
P
la
n
s
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
 

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 
A
 p
re
s
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 w
a
s
 g
iv
e
n
 t
o
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 h
e
a
d
s
 a
b
o
u
t 
th
e
 f
o
u
r 

c
ri
te
ri
a
 w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 b
e
 u
s
e
d
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy
 t
h
e
 m
o
s
t 
a
p
p
ro
p
ri
a
te
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
, 

a
n
d
 h
e
a
d
s
 w
e
re
 a
s
k
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
d
ic
a
te
 w
h
e
th
e
r 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 f
it
s
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 v
is
io
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
T
h
e
 n
e
x
t 
tr
a
n
c
h
e
 o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 l
ik
e
ly
 t
o
 c
o
m
m
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a
u
tu
m
n
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 
P
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
ro
v
is
io
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
lin
d
a
le
 a
re
a
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
T
h
is
 i
n
c
lu
d
e
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
t 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
T
h
e
 O
ri
o
n
 f
ro
m
 2
 t
o
 4
F
E
 o
n
 a
 n
e
w
 s
it
e
 a
t 
G
ra
h
a
m
e
 

P
a
rk
 W

a
y
, 
w
h
ic
h
, 
fo
llo
w
in
g
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
, 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 i
n
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
2
, 
a
n
d
 t
o
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
 B
le
s
s
e
d
 D
o
m
in
ic
. 

E
la
in
e
 T
u
c
k
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

47



T
h
e
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 p
h
a
s
in
g
 o
f 
p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 a
n
d
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 

to
 m
e
e
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
s
 w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 

N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
, 
a
n
d
 r
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 c
o
m
m
it
te
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 M
e
d
iu
m
 T
e
rm
 

F
in
a
n
c
ia
l 
S
tr
a
te
g
y
 t
o
 f
in
a
n
c
e
 t
h
is
. 
 S
ta
tu
to
ry
 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 n
o
w
 b
e
e
n
 c
a
rr
ie
d
 

o
u
t 
o
n
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
 a
t 
M
o
s
s
 H
a
ll 
In
fa
n
t 
a
n
d
 J
u
n
io
r 
s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 
B
ru
n
s
w
ic
k
 

P
a
rk
, 
M
a
rt
in
, 
M
e
n
o
ra
h
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 a
n
d
 S
t 
M
a
ry
’s
 a
n
d
 S
t 
J
o
h
n
’s
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
. 
A
 n
e
w
 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 a
t 
M
ill
 H
ill
 E
a
s
t 
to
 m
e
e
t 
th
e
 n
e
e
d
s
 o
f 
th
e
 n
e
w
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
, 

a
n
d
 a
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 
th
is
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
g
re
e
d
 a
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
u
rc
e
s
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

 

48



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 

C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
e
e
k
 

to
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 

o
f 
o
v
e
rs
u
b
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 

v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
id
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 

w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
a
n
d
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
e
n
t.
  
T
h
e
 G
ro
u
p
 

w
is
h
e
s
 t
o
 s
ta
te
 i
ts
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt
 f
o
r 
th
e
 

e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
A
k
iv
a
 

S
c
h
o
o
l 
in
 p
a
rt
ic
u
la
r,
 

s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 

c
o
n
s
e
n
t.
 

         A
m
b
e
r 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 s
e
e
k
 t
o
 s
u
p
p
o
rt
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

o
v
e
rs
u
b
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
id
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 w
h
e
re
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 
a
n
d
 s
u
b
je
c
t 
to
 

p
la
n
n
in
g
 c
o
n
s
e
n
t.
” 
 

A
d
d
it
io
n
a
l 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
C
o
m
m
e
n
t:
 “
C
a
b
in
e
t 
g
e
n
e
ra
lly
 e
n
d
o
rs
e
d
 t
h
e
 

re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o
f 
th
e
 G
ro
u
p
, 
b
u
t 
w
h
ils
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 

o
v
e
rs
u
b
s
c
ri
b
e
d
 v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
id
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
n
 p
ri
n
c
ip
le
, 
d
id
 n
o
t 
a
g
re
e
 t
h
a
t 
s
p
e
c
if
ic
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls
 s
h
o
u
ld
 b
e
 s
in
g
le
d
 o
u
t 
fo
r 
s
u
p
p
o
rt
 a
s
 a
n
y
 i
n
d
iv
id
u
a
l 
p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
w
o
u
ld
 

n
e
e
d
 t
o
 u
n
d
e
rg
o
 a
p
p
ra
is
a
l 
a
g
a
in
s
t 
a
 r
a
n
g
e
 o
f 
re
le
v
a
n
t 
c
ri
te
ri
a
.”
 

U
p
d
a
te
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 
 V
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 a
id
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 

a
lo
n
g
s
id
e
 c
o
m
m
u
n
it
y
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 f
o
r 
p
o
te
n
ti
a
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
, 
a
n
d
 d
is
c
u
s
s
io
n
s
 w
ill
 b
e
 

h
e
ld
 w
it
h
 r
e
le
v
a
n
t 
d
io
c
e
s
a
n
 b
o
a
rd
s
 w
h
e
n
 m
o
re
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
d
 

a
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 t
h
a
t 
w
ill
 b
e
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
fo
r 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
s
. 
 T
h
e
 L
A
 

h
a
d
 e
a
rm
a
rk
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
th
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
 o
f 
A
k
iv
a
 S
c
h
o
o
l,
 b
u
t 
G
o
v
e
rn
o
rs
 

s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 d
e
c
id
e
d
 n
o
t 
to
 p
ro
c
e
e
d
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 e
x
p
a
n
s
io
n
. 
 A
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
F
re
e
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
re
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 t
o
 o
p
e
n
 i
n
 o
r 
n
e
a
r 
B
a
rn
e
t,
 i
n
c
lu
d
in
g
 t
w
o
 J
e
w
is
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
, 

w
h
ic
h
 w
ill
 c
o
n
tr
ib
u
te
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n
u
m
b
e
r 
o
f 
fa
it
h
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
s
 a
v
a
ila
b
le
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 

re
s
id
e
n
ts
. 

U
p
d
a
te
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
: 
 A
 s
ta
tu
to
ry
 p
ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 

B
ro
a
d
fi
e
ld
s
 P
ri
m
a
ry
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
w
a
s
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
B
a
rn
e
t 

h
a
s
 b
e
e
n
 a
llo
c
a
te
d
 £
9
.5
m
 o
f 
B
a
s
ic
 N
e
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in
g
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
1
/1
2
 f
o
r 
a
ll 
s
ta
te
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 a
s
 p
a
rt
 o
f 
th
e
 G
o
v
e
rn
m
e
n
t’
s
 c
a
p
it
a
l 
fu
n
d
in
g
 a
llo
c
a
ti
o
n
. 
P
la
n
s
 

a
re
 b
e
in
g
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
e
d
 t
o
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 i
n
c
re
a
s
e
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 l
in
e
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm
e
n
t 
s
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
g
re
e
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
in
 S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 
A
 n
e
w
 F
re
e
 S
c
h
o
o
l 
E
tz
 C
h
a
im
 i
s
 o
n
 t
ra
c
k
 t
o
 o
p
e
n
 i
n
 

E
la
in
e
 T
u
c
k
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

49



S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
. 
P
la
n
s
 a
re
 t
o
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 
p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 p
ri
m
a
ry
 c
a
p
a
c
it
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 b
o
ro
u
g
h
 a
re
 b
e
in
g
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
e
d
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 
A
s
 s
e
t 
o
u
t 
in
 t
h
e
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
1
 p
a
p
e
r 
to
 C
a
b
in
e
t,
 p
a
re
n
ta
l 

p
re
fe
re
n
c
e
 i
s
 o
n
e
 o
f 
th
e
 f
o
u
r 
k
e
y
 c
ri
te
ri
a
 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to
 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w
h
e
n
 d
e
c
id
in
g
 

w
h
ic
h
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 t
o
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 e
x
p
a
n
d
. 
T
o
 h
e
lp
 m
e
e
t 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 f
o
r 
v
o
lu
n
ta
ry
 

a
id
e
d
 s
c
h
o
o
ls
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 e
x
p
a
n
d
 S
t 
M
a
ry
’s
 a
n
d
 S
t 
J
o
h
n
’s
 (
C
h
u
rc
h
 o
f 

E
n
g
la
n
d
) 
a
n
d
 B
le
s
s
e
d
 D
o
m
in
ic
 (
C
a
th
o
lic
).
 I
t 
is
 a
ls
o
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 p
e
rm
a
n
e
n
tl
y
 

e
x
p
a
n
d
 M
e
n
o
ra
h
 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 (
J
e
w
is
h
).
 

 

50



 
R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
) 

S
ta
tu
s
 

 
In
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 

 
C
o
n
ta
c
t 

O
ff
ic
e
r 

T
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 

c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
a
c
y
 o
f 

th
e
 G
L
A
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 

d
e
m
a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 

th
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 

to
 M
e
m
b
e
rs
. 

    G
re
e
n
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
R
e
s
o
lu
ti
o
n
: 
“T
h
a
t 
th
e
 a
u
th
o
ri
ty
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
c
lo
s
e
ly
 t
h
e
 e
ff
ic
a
c
y
 

o
f 
th
e
 G
L
A
 m
o
d
e
l 
fo
r 
d
e
m
a
n
d
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
is
 i
n
fo
rm
a
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 t
o
 

m
e
m
b
e
rs
.”
  

 U
p
d
a
te
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
: 
 U
p
d
a
te
d
 G
L
A
 r
o
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
 f
re
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 

a
n
d
 i
t 
is
 p
ro
p
o
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a
n
 u
p
d
a
te
 p
a
p
e
r 
to
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
 t
o
 e
x
a
m
in
e
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
th
e
 l
a
te
s
t 

p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 F
e
b
ru
a
ry
 2
0
1
1
: 
 A
 p
a
p
e
r 
o
n
 t
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
ro
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 w
e
n
t 

to
 C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
 O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 i
n
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
0
. 

T
h
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
ro
ll 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b
e
 m
o
n
it
o
re
d
, 
a
n
d
 i
s
 

c
u
rr
e
n
tl
y
 b
e
in
g
 a
n
a
ly
s
e
d
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
th
e
 l
a
te
s
t 
J
a
n
u
a
ry
 C
e
n
s
u
s
 o
f 
p
u
p
il 
n
u
m
b
e
rs
 i
n
 

B
a
rn
e
t.
 

  U
p
d
a
te
 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
1
: 
S
e
v
e
ra
l 
b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 G
L
A
 m
e
t 
to
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

im
p
ro
v
e
m
e
n
ts
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
 m
o
d
e
l.
 G
L
A
 o
ff
ic
e
rs
 a
ls
o
 c
a
m
e
 t
o
 B
a
rn
e
t 
to
 

u
n
d
e
rs
ta
n
d
 h
o
w
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
re
 a
p
p
lie
d
 t
o
 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
la
c
e
 p
la
n
n
in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro
u
g
h
. 

 U
p
d
a
te
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
: 
L
B
B
 O
ff
ic
e
rs
 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 m
o
n
it
o
r 
th
e
 a
c
c
u
ra
c
y
 o
f 
G
L
A
 

p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 s
e
n
s
e
 c
h
e
c
k
 t
h
is
 a
g
a
in
s
t 
b
ir
th
 p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 o
th
e
r 
d
a
ta
. 
A
s
 a
 

re
s
u
lt
 o
f 
w
o
rk
in
g
 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G
L
A
 l
a
s
t 
a
u
tu
m
n
, 
p
ro
je
c
ti
o
n
s
 h
a
v
e
 b
e
e
n
 r
e
fi
n
e
d
 t
o
 

in
c
lu
d
e
 h
ig
h
 a
n
d
 l
o
w
 f
e
rt
ili
ty
 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 a
n
d
 a
 z
e
ro
 d
e
v
e
lo
p
m
e
n
t 
o
p
ti
o
n
. 
T
h
is
 

a
llo
w
s
 f
o
r 
a
 g
re
a
te
r 
ra
n
g
e
 o
f 
s
c
e
n
a
ri
o
s
 t
o
 b
e
 p
la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r.
  

E
la
in
e
 T
u
c
k
, 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 a
n
d
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r,
 

C
h
ild
re
n
’s
 

S
e
rv
ic
e
s
 

 

51



52

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood, Overview and Scrutiny Officer 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix – Cabinet Forward Plan of Key Decisions – To be 
circulated separately 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for further information:  

Andrew Charlwood Overview & Scrutiny Officer, 020 8359 2014,  melissa.james@barnet.gov.uk 

  

 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 31 July 2012 

Subject Cabinet Forward Plan 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

AGENDA ITEM 10

53



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee comment on and consider the Cabinet Forward Plan when 

identifying areas of future scrutiny work. 
 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the Council’s priorities. 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012-13 Corporate Plan are:  

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 Pursuant to the Equality Act 2010, the Council has a legislative duty to have ‘due regard’ 

 to eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality and fostering good relations in 
 the contexts of age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy, and maternity, religion 
 or belief and sexual orientation. 

 
5.2 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and retention, 
personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities and health 
and safety 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8. CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees are contained within Part 2, Article 

6 of the Council’s Constitution  
 

54



 

8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 
Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 

 
9.  BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 Under the current overview and scrutiny arrangements, the Business Management 

Overview & Scrutiny Committee will ensure that the work of scrutiny is reflective of 
Council priorities, as evidenced by the Corporate Plan and the programme being 
followed by the Executive.  

 
9.2  The Cabinet Forward Plan will be included on the agenda at each meeting of the 

Business Management Overview & Scrutiny Committee as a standing item.  
 
9.3 The Committee is encouraged to comment on the Forward Plan.  
 
9.4 The Committee is asked to consider items contained within the Forward Plan to assist in 

identifying areas of future scrutiny work, particularly focussing on areas where scrutiny 
can add value in the decision making process (pre-decision scrutiny).   

 
9.5 When identifying items for pre-decision scrutiny, the Committee are requested to provide 

specific information on the rationale behind the pre-decision scrutiny request and the 
expected outcome to enable Cabinet Members and officers to prepare appropriately. 

 
10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

55



56

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
 
 
   

 

 

Officer Contributors Andrew Charlwood , Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

Status (public or exempt) Public 

Wards affected All 

Enclosures Appendix – Business Management Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee Work Programme 2012/13 

Reason for urgency / 
exemption from call-in  

N/A 

Contact for further information: Andrew Charlwood, Overview & Scrutiny Manager 

020 8359 2014, melissa.james@barnet.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Meeting Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee 

Date 31 July 2012 

Subject Business Management Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee Forward Work Programme 2012/13 

Report of Scrutiny Office 

Summary This report outlines the Committee’s draft work programme for 
2012/13 

AGENDA ITEM 11

57



 

1. RECOMMENDATION 
 
1.1 That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 2012/13 

work programme of the Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
as set out in the Appendix. 

 
2. RELEVANT PREVIOUS DECISIONS 
 
2.1 None. 
 
3. CORPORATE PRIORITIES AND POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
3.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees must ensure that the work of Scrutiny is 

reflective of the Council’s priorities 
 
3.2 The three priority outcomes set out in the 2012-2013 Corporate Plan are: – 

• Better services with less money 

• Sharing opportunities, sharing responsibilities 

• A successful London suburb 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT ISSUES 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5. EQUALITIES AND DIVERSITY ISSUES 
 
5.1 In addition to the Terms of Reference of the Committee, and in so far as relating to 

matters within its remit, the role of the Committee is to perform the Overview and 
Scrutiny role in relation to: 

 

• The Council’s leadership role in relation to diversity and inclusiveness; and 

• The fulfilment of the Council’s duties as employer including recruitment and 
retention, personnel, pensions and payroll services, staff development, equalities 
and health and safety. 

 
6. USE OF RESOURCES IMPLICATIONS (Finance, Procurement, Performance & 

Value for Money, Staffing, IT, Property, Sustainability) 
 
6.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
7. LEGAL ISSUES 
 
7.1 None in the context of this report. 
 
8 CONSTITUTIONAL POWERS 
 
8.1 The scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Committees is contained within Part 2, Article 6 

of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
8.2 The Terms of Reference of the Scrutiny Committees are included in the Overview and 

Scrutiny Procedure Rules (Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution). 
 

58



 

9. BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
9.1 The Business Management Overview and Scrutiny Committee’s Work Programme 

2012/13 indicates: 

a) items of business carried forward from the Business Management Overview and 
Scrutiny Sub-Committee work programme for the 2011/12 municipal year; and  

b) items requested by the Committee in the 2012/13 municipal year.   
 
9.2 The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool, which will 

be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the inclusion of areas which 
may arise through the course of the year.  

 
9.3 The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of 

work within the programme.  
 

10. LIST OF BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
10.1 None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59



60

This page is intentionally left blank



 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 O

V
E

R
V

IE
W

 A
N

D
 S

C
R

U
T

IN
Y

 F
O

R
W

A
R

D
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
0
1
2
/1

3
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

 3
1
 J
u
ly
  
2
0
1
2
 

 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 M

A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 &
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 

 
IT
E
M
S
 O
 B
E
 

C
O
N
S
ID
E
R
E
D
 

 
IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 O
R
IG
IN
 

  
  
  
  
  
  

L
IN
K
 T
O
  
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 P
L
A
N
 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 U
p
d
a
te
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 T
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

a
t 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
S
C
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

  

61



1
1
 J
U
N
E
 2
0
1
2
 

 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 M

A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 &
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 

 
IT
E
M
S
 O
 B
E
 

C
O
N
S
ID
E
R
E
D
 

 
IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

 
R
E
P
O
R
T
 O
R
IG
IN
 

  
  
  
  
  
  

L
IN
K
 T
O
  
C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
 P
L
A
N
 

S
k
il
ls
 a
n
d
 E
n
te
rp
ri
s
e
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P
la
n
 /
 

S
u
p
p
o
rt
in
g
 Y
o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le
 i
n
to
 

E
m
p
lo
y
m
e
n
t 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt
a
k
e
 p
re
-d
e
c
is
io
n
 s
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

o
f 
th
is
 P
la
n
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
 2
0
 J
u
n
e
 2
0
1
2
  

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

A
s
s
is
ta
n
t 
C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s
 S
e
rv
ic
e
  

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 m

o
n
e
y
 

 

•
 
S
h
a
ri
n
g
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 S
h
a
ri
n
g
 

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

 •
 
S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 S
u
b
u
rb
 

U
p
d
a
te
 P
e
d
e
s
tr
ia
n
 

P
e
ti
ti
o
n
- 

  

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 u
p
d
a
te
 

fr
o
m
 E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

im
p
a
c
t 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th
e
 

C
h
u
rc
h
 L
a
n
e
 a
re
a
. 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
H
o
u
s
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R
e
v
ie
w
 o
f 

O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 

 

In
it
ia
lly
 c
o
n
s
id
e
re
d
 b
y
 B
M
O
S
C
 

o
n
 1
8
 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
2
. 
 C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 

o
n
 c
o
n
te
n
t 
to
 t
a
k
e
 p
la
c
e
 w
it
h
 

O
S
C
 C
h
a
ir
m
e
n
 a
n
d
 a
d
d
it
io
n
 o
f 

c
o
m
m
it
te
e
s
 F
W
P
s
 f
o
r 
2
0
1
2
/1
3
 

to
 b
e
 a
d
d
e
d
. 
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

N
/A
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 

G
ro
u
p
 U
p
d
a
te
s
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
n
 

u
p
d
a
te
 o
n
 t
h
e
 p
ro
g
re
s
s
 o
f 
th
e
 

fe
a
s
ib
ili
ty
 s
tu
d
ie
s
 f
o
r 
th
e
 T
a
s
k
 

a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s
 e
s
ta
b
lis
h
e
d
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

62



a
t 
th
e
 l
a
s
t 
m
e
e
ti
n
g
. 
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
S
C
 

W
o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

  IT
E
M
S
 T
O
 B
E
 A
L
L
O
C
A
T
E
D
 

 B
U
S
IN
E
S
S
 M

A
N
A
G
E
M
E
N
T
 O
V
E
R
V
IE
W
 &
 S
C
R
U
T
IN
Y
 C
O
M
M
IT
T
E
E
 

 

IT
E
M
S
 T
O
 B
E
 

C
O
N
S
ID
E
R
E
D
 

IN
F
O
R
M
A
T
IO
N
 

R
E
P
O
R
T
 O
R
IG
IN
 

L
IN
K
 T
O
 T
H
E
 C
O
R
P
O
R
A
T
E
  

P
L
A
N
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 

H
ig
h
w
a
y
 M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 

P
la
n
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
s
 A
s
s
e
t 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
P
la
n
 a
n
d
 H
ig
h
w
a
y
 

M
a
in
te
n
a
n
c
e
 P
la
n
 i
n
 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
 1
7
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
 a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

•
 
B
e
tt
e
r 
s
e
rv
ic
e
s
 w
it
h
 l
e
s
s
 m

o
n
e
y
 

 

•
 
S
h
a
ri
n
g
 O
p
p
o
rt
u
n
it
ie
s
 a
n
d
 

S
h
a
ri
n
g
 R
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
il
it
ie
s
 

 S
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu
l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 S
u
b
u
rb
 

P
a
rk
in
g
 C
h
a
rg
e
s
 

P
e
ti
ti
o
n
 U
p
d
a
te
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 r
e
c
e
iv
e
 a
 r
e
p
o
rt
 b
y
 t
h
e
 

e
n
d
 o
f 
S
e
p
te
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
, 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

m
it
ig
a
ti
o
n
 o
f 
p
a
rk
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 o
n
 t
h
e
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 

63



b
o
ro
u
g
h
s
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
m
a
k
in
g
 

re
fe
re
n
c
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N
o
rt
h
 F
in
c
h
le
y
 

O
u
te
r 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 F
u
n
d
 P
a
rk
in
g
 R
e
v
ie
w
. 

 T
h
e
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
h
a
t 
E
P
R
 

D
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
 g
iv
e
 f
u
rt
h
e
r 

c
o
n
s
id
e
ra
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p
a
rk
in
g
 c
h
a
rg
e
s
 

d
e
v
is
e
 a
n
d
 i
m
p
le
m
e
n
t 
a
 s
tr
a
te
g
y
 f
o
r 

m
it
ig
a
ti
n
g
, 
in
 s
o
 f
a
r 
a
s
 i
s
 p
o
s
s
ib
le
, 

th
e
 e
ff
e
c
ts
 o
f 
in
c
re
a
s
e
d
 p
a
rk
in
g
 

c
h
a
rg
e
s
 o
n
 t
o
w
n
 c
e
n
tr
e
s
, 
w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
d
in
g
s
 r
e
p
o
rt
e
d
 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 
 

R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m
e
n
t,
 

P
la
n
n
in
g
, 
a
n
d
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 

C
h
ip
p
in
g
 B
a
rn
e
t 
T
o
w
n
 

C
e
n
tr
e
 P
la
n
n
in
g
 B
ri
e
fs
 

–
 D
ra
ft
 f
o
r 
A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 

  

C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
/V
ic
e
-C
h
a
ir
m
a
n
 t
o
 

c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
w
h
e
th
e
r 
B
M
O
S
C
 s
h
o
u
ld
 

re
c
e
iv
e
 i
te
m
 p
re
 o
r 
p
o
s
t 
C
a
b
in
e
t 

d
e
c
is
io
n
 o
n
  
 1
7
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

C
ri
m
e
 a
n
d
 D
is
o
rd
e
r 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 (

T
B

C
) 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 o
f 
p
a
rt
n
e
rs
 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib
le
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv
e
ri
n
g
 o
f 
th
e
 S
a
fe
r 
C
o
m
m
u
n
it
ie
s
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 
  

G
ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 

R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
  

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 h
a
v
e
 r
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 t
o
 

s
c
ru
ti
n
is
e
 t
h
e
 G
ra
h
a
m
e
 P
a
rk
 a
n
d
 

B
re
n
t 
C
ro
s
s
 R
e
g
e
n
e
ra
ti
o
n
 r
e
p
o
rt
 i
n
 

a
d
v
a
n
c
e
 o
f 
C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
 1
7
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

D
e
p
u
ty
 C
h
ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

64



E
d
g
w
a
re
 T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 

S
tr
a
te
g
y
 

 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 t
o
 c
o
n
s
id
e
r 
th
e
 d
ra
ft
 

E
d
g
w
a
re
 T
o
w
n
 C
e
n
tr
e
 S
tr
a
te
g
y
. 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
  

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 /
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
ls
 –
 

R
e
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 

T
ra
c
k
in
g
 

O
n
g
o
in
g
 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o
f 

im
p
le
m
e
n
ta
ti
o
n
 o
f 
re
c
o
m
m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 

(a
c
c
e
p
te
d
 b
y
 C
a
b
in
e
t 
o
n
ly
) 
a
t 
s
ix
-

m
o
n
th
ly
 i
n
te
rv
a
ls
. 
  

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 (
w
it
h
 

c
o
n
tr
ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 f
ro
m
 

re
le
v
a
n
t 
d
ir
e
c
to
ra
te
s
) 

T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
 /
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
l 
U
p
d
a
te
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

C
a
b
in
e
t 
F
o
rw

a
rd
 P
la
n
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 M
a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 

O
S
C
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 

S
ta
n
d
in
g
 i
te
m
 

R
e
q
u
e
s
te
d
 b
y
 

C
o
m
m
it
te
e
 

 R
e
p
o
rt
 f
ro
m
 

S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 O
ff
ic
e
 

65



*P
le
a
s
e
 n
o
te
 t
h
a
t 
th
e
 B
u
s
in
e
s
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m
e
n
t 
O
v
e
rv
ie
w
 a
n
d
 S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
’s
 F
o
rw

a
rd
 W

o
rk
 P
ro
g
ra
m
m
e
 2
0
1
1
/1
2
 i
s
 a
n
 

e
v
o
lv
in
g
 d
o
c
u
m
e
n
t 
w
h
ic
h
 i
s
 d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk
 o
f 
T
a
s
k
 a
n
d
 F
in
is
h
 G
ro
u
p
s
, 
S
c
ru
ti
n
y
 P
a
n
e
ls
 a
n
d
 a
n
y
 o
th
e
r 
b
u
s
in
e
s
s
 

w
it
h
in
 t
h
e
 r
e
m
it
 o
f 
th
is
 C
o
m
m
it
te
e
. 

  F
U

T
U

R
E

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

 D
A

T
E

S
  

3
1
s
t  
J
u
ly
 2
0
1
2
 

2
4
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
``
 

2
0
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
2
 

1
0
th
 J
a
n
u
a
ry
 2
0
1
3
 

1
1
th
 M
a
rc
h
 2
0
1
3
 

2
n
d
 M
a
y
  
2
0
1
3
 

3
r
d
 J
u
ly
 2
0
1
3
 

7
th
 O
c
to
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

1
8
th
 N
o
v
e
m
b
e
r 
2
0
1
3
 

66


	Agenda
	6 Any matters Referred by Members of the Committee relating to key decisions made by:
	8 Friern Barnet Library Petition
	Appendix A

	9 Task and Finish Groups / Overview and Scrutiny Panels - Recommendation Tracking
	Cold Weather TFG
	Homelessness and Young People TFG
	Housing Allocations OSP
	Recycling and Waste Minimisation TFG
	Road Resurfacing TFG
	School Places Planning TFG

	10 Cabinet Forward Plan
	11 Forward Work Programme
	BMOSC_2012_07_31 WP Appendix


